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» Cash Distributions (Resuli)
The 9th Period (May 31, 2016)

Cash distributions per unit

v8,666

» Cash Distributions (Forecast)
The 10th Period (November 30, 2016)

Cash distributions per unit

The 11th Period (vay 31, 2017)

Cash distributions per unit
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Implemented a Third Public Offering,
Aiming to Enlarge the Scale of Assets
on a Continuing Basis and Maximize

Our Unitholder Value

Activia Properties Inc. (API) is pleased to inform
you that we safely closed all accounts for the 9th
period (from December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016). |
wish to again express my gratitude to you for your
understanding and support.

In the 9th period ended May 31, 2016, the
Japanese economy continued to follow a path of
moderate recovery overall amid a trend of steady
improvement in the employment environment and
recovery in capital investment. Nevertheless, signs
of weakness have been seen in some respects
that included a slowing pace of improvement in
corporate earnings.

As for the J-REIT market, it is currently under
a strong financing environment, particularly in

| Financial Highlights (Millions of yen)

8th Period

Michie Kawai

Executive Director
Activia Properties Inc.

Representative Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

TLC Activia Investment Management Inc.

terms of funds flowing into the market targeting
relatively high rates of return due to the Bank
of Japan’s stance on maintaining its monetary
easing policy, which includes a negative interest
rate policy. Nevertheless, we will need to pay
attention to potential adverse effect of financial
and capital market volatility, brought about by
developments including the growing uncertainties
in overseas markets, trends with respect to U.S.
interest rate policy, and Brexit.

With respect to the environment surrounding
retail properties, although consumer confidence
has been unchanged overall, we expect a shift to
gradual recovery in personal consumption against
a backdrop of the government’s opting to hold

Operating revenue

9,701

10,175

Operating income

5,460

5,926

Ordinary income

4,790

5,197

Profit ¥4,789

5,196

off on implementing the consumption tax hike,
combined with ongoing circumstances in terms of
a favorable employment environment.

With respect to the office building leasing
market, the vacancy rate in cental Tokyo is
continuously at a low level and the uptrend in rent
continued for 29 months in a row up to May 2016.

Under these circumstances, APl conducted
a public offering in December 2015 for the third
year in a row, and through the offering, we made
acquisitions (total acquisition price of ¥33.8
billion) of Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI and Shiodome
Building (additional 10% co-ownership interest),
which are categorized as our focused investment
targets in “Urban Retail Properties” and “Tokyo
Office Properties,” respectively.

Regarding internal growth, as for “Tokyo
Office Properties,” we achieved rent increases in
83% to all lease renewals during the period, and
as for “Urban Retail Properties,” favorable trend in
sales-linked rent at hotels has continued.

With respect to occupancy rate, we have
continuously maintained it at a high level. The
occupancy rate of our portfolio at the end of the
period rose to 99.8% as the outcome of prompt
leasing of “Tokyo Office Properties.”

0)

As a result, for the 9th period, APl achieved
¥10,175 million in operating revenue, ¥5,926 million
in operating income, ¥5,196 million in profit,
and ¥8,666 in distributions per unit, which
exceeded the previous period that included the
gain on disposition.

Furthermore, during the 10th period, API
acquired A-PLACE Gotanda Ekimae "' (acquisition
price: ¥7.3 billion), which is categorized as our
focused investment target in “Tokyo Office
Properties,” from a third party. Through the
acquisition, APl expanded its portfolio to 33
properties and the total acquisition price to ¥333.9
billion, and the relative portion of Urban Retail and
Tokyo Office Properties, our focused investments,
to 83.6% of the portfolio.

From the 10th period onward, API will seek
to maximize unitholder value over the medium to
long term by pursuing external growth and internal
growth. We will accomplish this by leveraging the
expertise and network of TLC Activia Investment
Management Inc. as well as by utilizing the value
chain of the Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Group.

Your continued support and cooperation are
highly appreciated.

Thank you for your cooperation.

(Note) Gotanda Sankei Building was renamed as A-PLACE Gotanda Ekimae on July 1, 2016. The same applies hereafter.

8th Period

o i 307,746

339,894

Net assets Y ] 55,560

176,729

Unitholders’ equity to total
assets (%)

50.5-

52.0.

Net assets per unit (yen)™©

280,661

294,719

(Note) APl implemented a 2-for-1 investment unit split with October 1, 2015 as the effective date.



Topics for the 9th Period

TOPICS

] External Growth
Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI

| Shinsaibashi-suji,

Q\‘\ Dotonbon Area R :§~ rate
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3 attractions of Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI

Osaka]Namba Stas

Tokyu Hands ® N N . A
_______ agahori St 1 | ocation Chuo-ku, Osaka City,
Nagahori-TsurumiRyokuchi Subway Line Osaka
SHINARSH 1-minute walk from
N 2 Closest Shinsaibashi Station on
R L2 o ol school station Midosuji Subway Line
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1. Drawing Power
One of the busiest quarters in Osaka that
provides visitors the “Osaka experience”
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2. A Landmark
A prominent landmark with a huge LED
mural display

%

Z

~
&

3. Scarcity
Located at the entrance to Shinsaibashi-
suji Shopping District with direct
underground connection to the station

TO-12] Shiodome Building

(additional 10% co-ownership interest)

Location Kaigan, Minato-ku, Tokyo Acquisition
TOKYO OFFICE 3-minute walk from price

Hamamatsucho Station Appraisallvaiuel ¥20,700 million
Closest on JR Yamanote Line A | NOI
and other lines, 3-minute APPraisa

ik lilel) walk from Daimon yield

Station on Toei Oedo Occupancy 98.2%
and Asakusa Lines rate (as of May 2016)

;
O ki 3 attractions of Shiodome Building

1. State-of-the-art Office Building
A high-grade, well-equipped office
ng?%??e building, with a pillar-less structure and
& more than 1,000 tsubo (3,502 m?) leasable
area on a standard office floor, which can
address needs from various tenants

¥20,400 million

41%

2. Accessibility
Shlbankyu Urban|Regeneration 3-minute walk from Hamamatsucho Station.

sm Garden “f&.ﬂﬁa’ﬁéﬁﬂn Excellent accessibility to Haneda Airport

TaestivaSta. 3. Growth Potential of the Area
The area has considerable growth potential
with multiple large-scale redevelopment
projects, including the one by our sponsor

’Tokyo monorail

ftr
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| Continuous expansion of assets under management

¥ APl implemented its third public offering (approximately ¥20.7 billion) and acquired “Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI” and
“Shiodome Building” (additional 10% co-ownership interest) from our sponsor, Tokyu Land Corporation.
W As of July 13, 2016, the assets expanded to approximately ¥333.9 billion. They have more than doubled in about 4 years.

(Billions of yen)

350 -
™ Sponsor
P %3267
™ Warehousing
™ Third party
250 -
¥170.4
150 18/ Properties—=20 Properties! 27 Properties 28 Properties 30 Properties 31 Properties 32 Properties 33/ Properties
2nd Period 3rd Period 4th Period 5th Period 6th Period 7th Period 8th Period 9th Period As of
(2012.11) (2013.5) (2013.11) (2014.5) (2014.11) (2015.5) (2015.11) (2016.5) July 18, 2016

2 Trends in Dividends

¥ Mainly due to new contributions from two properties acquired in the 3rd public offering and consistent rent increase, in
the 9th period, DPU reached ¥8,666, exceeding the initial forecast for the 9th period (¥8,312), the actual DPU for the 8th
period (¥8,642 including disposition effect of icot Kongo), as well as the former forecast for the 10th period (¥8,651).

W We are aiming for the ¥9,000 level in the medium to long term.

(Yen)

90001 Exceeded the 8th period, which includes
’ [ Former forecast disposition effect, on normalized basis
™ 9th period DPU / New forecast ¥8,642 ¥8,666
™ Actual DPU Effect by dlsposmon
Effect from disposition of “icot Kongo” ¥31
¥8,123
8,000| ¥7,961 ¥8,028

¥7,761 ¥7,752

¥7,881
¥7, éool I

+4l0% I

4th Period 5th Period 6th Period 7th Period 8th Period 9th Period 10th Period 11th Period
(2013.11) (2014.5) (2014.11) (2015.5) (2015.11) (2016.5) (2016.11) (2017.5)

(Note) To reflect the 2-for-1 unit split effected as of October 1, 2015, the figures before the 8th period are shown as half the actual DPU.

7,000
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3 Achievement of Internal Growth 4 Financial Strategy

I Upward rent revisions for Tokyo Office Properties ) API refinanced of ¥21.4 billion between January and June in 2016 and cut down interest rate by 0.13ppt.
¥ Realized approxmately 83% upward rent revisions out of all leases renewed during the 9th period. Before
P Trend in rent revisions ©2016.1.12 . . 1.5 years 8.0 years +6.5 years
(Before negative ¥7 billion
m3) (%) interest policy) 0.26% 0.78% 0.52ppt
19,800 . - 90 [T T e s o o T o o o o - - R L (Reference)
M Upward revision (left axis) (¥6 billion) ' (¥6 billion) ! A borrowing with
. ) Approx. 09% 7l 80 : : )
16,500 [~ Downward revision (left axis) e . U378 m 22016.6.13 ¥12 billion | 4.0 years 8.0 years | 8.5years |  +4.3years the same duration
W Subject to revision (left axis) |70 1 | before the
0.87% 0.33% + 0.37% -0.52ppt introduction
13,200 = - Ratio of upward revision (right axis) 7 60 of negative
oS i . 0.7 years 3.0 years +2.3 years interest polic
58 9,583 m? , 50 (3 2016.6.30 ¥2.4 billion policy
g3 99001 . w 0.17% 0.03% ~014ppt | | (2015.12.16)
=l m 7 40 Amount: ¥6 billion
2.8 years 7.6 years +4.8 years i
6,600 - a0 ¢verlagef_/ ¥91.4 pillion Durat|on.8.§ years
14 4,479 m? ] otal refinance 0.59% 0.46% -0.13ppt Interest rate:
| A 5,361 m 20 0.85%
o JSiiy - 10 3.3 4.0 0.7
i o .3 years .0 years +0.7 years
~ . 1775 mz 1,557 m? o :;Otal- of Qt%rest V154.4 billion
Es 228 m? —525 i earing debt 0.75% 0.70% -0.05ppt
=)
233300
= 4th Period 5th Period 6th Period 7th Period 8th Period 9th Period 10th PeriodNote)  11th Period Note)
(2013.11) (2014.5) (2014.11) (2015.5) (2015.11) (2016.5) (2016.11) (2017.5)
(Note) For the 10th period and the 11th period, as of July 13, 2016.
) Lengthened average years remaining to maturity while lowering average ) We issued the Investment
interest rate Corporation Bonds (10-year) with
interest rate at the record-low level
B Average years remaining to maturity (right) —4@— Average interest rate (left)
. . (%) (Years)
| Trend in sales-linked rent at hotels . ;
1.0 4
The Investment
H API owns three Urban Retail Properties with hotel sections and 1,178 guest rooms in total. Corporation 4th
B Sales-linked rent at hotels is on upward trend mainly due to domestic business accommodation demand, Unsecured Bonds
contributing to increased revenue. el lssue date February 3, 2016
(Millions of yen) Issuance -
240 amount ¥2 billion
L] ] Sale.s—linked rent at hotels 206.6 Duration 10 years
Previous forecast 0.6
180|- Interest 0.770%
160.5 13
Condition JGB +55bp
0.4
120 -
0Odd period: Even period: 9.0
Kobe Kyu Kyoryuchi Tokyu Plaza Akasaka / 79.
25Bankan A-FLAG SAPPORO 54.4
60 . 02r
43.1 503
3.3 years 3.5years 2.9years 3.1years 2.9years 3.0years 3.3lyears 3.5years 4.0 years
7.7 8.4
0 . ) . . . - 0.0 L L L L L L L 2
5th Period 6th Period 7th Period 8th Period 9th Period 10th Period

2nd Period  3rd Period  4th Period  5th Period  6th Period ~ 7th Period ~ 8th Period  9th Period As of
(2014.5) (2014.11) (2015.5) (2015.11) (2016.5) (2016.11) (201211)  (20135)  (2013.11)  (20145)  (2014.11)  (20155) (2015.11)  (2016.5) July 13,2016
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Topics for the 10th Period and Onwards

TOPICS

External Growth
New property acquired in the 10th period (A-PLACE Gotanda Ekimae)

T70-15] A-PLACE Gotanda Ekimae

m We acquired the highly visible office building located in front of the JR Yamanote Line “Gotanda” Station from

a third-party in July 2016.
Property Features

¥ Located in front of the JR Yamanote Line
“Gotanda” Station West Exit, the property
is capable of addressing a wide range
of demands from tenants including retail
stores, due to locational rarity and high
visibility from the station

¥ The property’s features include a standard
office floor area of 148 tsubo (489 m?) with
a ceiling height of 2,600 mm, individual
air conditioning units, free access floor,
etc. The rooms can be divided and flexibly
address the needs from tenants

¥ Rent upside is expectable for office area
since the current rent is lower than the
market rent and there is a rent-gap of
approximately —-10%

A-PLACE
Gotanda Ekimae

K] \

TO

TOKYO OFFICE

|5

JR Yamanote Line |
Gotanda Station
; e

In front of the Gotanda Station

o e — -

=3
=
=3
=

T
I

Nishigotanda,
Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo

1-minute walk from
Gotanda Station on JR
Yamanote Line, Toei
Asakusa Line and Tokyu
Ikegami Line

] -minute walk
from the neares
train station

¥7,280 million
¥7,390 million
4.3%

July 1, 2016
88.7% (as of July 1, 2016)

’A,\cti via

Financial Situation

Based on solid bank relationships backed by strong ties with major financial institutions, API will seek to maintain a
stable financial base by reducing interest costs and diversifying the maturities of interest-bearing debt.

m Key financial indicators

Nov. 2015 (8th period) May 2016 (9th period) As of July 13, 2016

Interest-bearing debt outstanding ¥136,900 million ¥147,150 million ¥154,350 million
TRy eEDi) 44.5% 43.3% 44.5%

98.2% (84.4%) 98.4% (80.4%) 98.0% (80.9%)

Long-term borrowing ratio Note2)

Fixed interest ratio Mot 82.6% 88.6% 86.0%
Average remaining maturity 3.3 years 3.5 years 4.0 years
Average interest ratio Noted 0.75% 0.77% 0.70%

(Note 1) Balance of interest-bearing debt + Total assets x 100. However, total assets as of July 13, 2016 are calculated as those at the end of the 9th period by adding the acquisition
price of a property that was acquired during the 10th period.

(Note 2) The figure in parentheses is the long-term borrowing ratio excluding the long-term borrowings repaid within a year.

(Note 3) To hedge the risks arising from interest rate fluctuations, API has entered into interest rate swap agreements. Therefore, the figures reflect the effect of interest rate swaps
(fixation of interest rate).

m Diversification of lenders (as of July 13, 2016)

1.1% 06% Lenders (bmio'?,ﬁ'g}yen) Ra(t»iu?teg%)
1.3% ! M Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank 37.6 24.3
1.6% W Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking 225 14.6
1.9% = Mizuho Bank 225 14.6
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ 225 14.6
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 11.2 7.3
7.3% Development Bank of Japan 1.2 7.3
¥] 54 35 M Mizuho Trust & Banking 6.7 4.3
7.3% billion M Resona Bank 3.0 1.9
W Shinkin Central Bank 2.5 1.6
The Bank of Fukuoka 2.0 1.3
14.6% The Norinchukin Bank 1.7 11
The Gunma Bank 1.0 0.6
M Investment Corporation Bonds 10.0 6.5

(Note) Data is rouded to the first decimal place. Threfore, the sum of the ratio may not
be 100%.

m Diversification of repayments of interest-bearing debt (as of July 13, 2016)

(Billions of yen) [ Borrowing || Investment corporation bonds
18

10th  11th  12th  13th  14th  15th  16th  17th  18th  19th 20th  21st 22nd 23rd 24th  25th 26th  27th  28th  29th
period period period period period period period period period period period period period period period period period period period period
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API’s Basic Policy

Focused investments in Urban Retail and Tokyo Office Properties

| Portfolio Construction Policy |

Urban Retail Properties

Urban Retail Properties are easily recognizable and are
located near major train stations or popular areas in Tokyo,
government-designated major cities within three major
metropolitan areas or other major cities in Japan.

Investment ratio
(acquisition price basis)

70%....

of the investment amount

(Note) The actual investment ratio could differ from
the ratio indicated above in the short term
depending on the acquisition or selling of
properties.

Tokyo Office Properties

Tokyo Office Properties are located within the 23 wards
of Tokyo in areas with a high concentration of offices and
near major train stations.

Other Properties

To enhance the stability and profitability of its portfolio, API carefully selects commercial facilities other
than Urban Retail Properties and office buildings other than Tokyo Office Properties, assessing the
attributes and competitiveness of each property.

| Maintenance of a High Investment Ratio of Focused Investments |
Percentage of Urban Retail and Tokyo Office Properties to API’s entire portfolio

81.3~ 100~ 83.6*

Q0O

As of July 13, 2016

As of November 30, 2015
(8th period)

3 properties acquired
in the 9th and 10th periods

| Persistence in Location Choice |

Percentage of Tokyo Office Properties located within a five-minute walking distance from the nearest

train station
91.9%

89.8%

less than
a minute

[CERRGET)
a minute

1-5
minutes

1-5
minutes

[ Sy - v T U B AS O iy 151 2016

(8th period)

[ As of November 30, 2015

’A,\cti via

Utilizing the Value Chain of the Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Group

| Leverage the Value Chain and Expertise of the Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Groupl

Value Chain

Sponsor Support Agreement Affiliate Support Agreement
© TOKYU LAND CORPORATION // Bl [ TOKYU cgngxﬂt;r:zv CORP.

Comprehensive Real Estate Developer
Comprehensive Real \‘ ),
Property Management Agreement Estate Distribution \V_/
Business, Brokerage o Ctl vla
‘© TOKYU LAND CORPORATION  and \ediation of Land Building
and Building Management

External Growth
Support

Comprehensive Real Estate Developer Activia Propertles Inc.
2 TOKYU LAND SC MANAGEMENT CORPORATION @WSM‘E’g Comprehensive support system
Commercial Facility Management NANDS of the Tokyu Fudosan

Retailer Holdings Group

TOKYU CC\))l\éIg{\lﬂlnil(\/l/IVTY CORP. roxvu seorts @ TOKYU STAY
Hotel Management
’ Building Internal Growth Other
Management Sports Facilities
Management Support Supports

| Utilizing the Proprietary Expertise of the Asset Manager |

The team is made up of members with extensive
experience in development, operations and

\\\Q/// TLG Al:“"ia ln"esu“e'“ Management lnc- management of commercial facilities and office
buildings in the Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Group.

¢ External growth leveraging its own expertise on asset acquisitions and the information collection network
e Constructed proper operation and management framework tailored to individual characteristics of assets under
management

Governance Structure for Maximizing Unitholder Value

| Impariality in Asset Acquisitions |

API introduced an approval process ensuring impartiality in acquiring assets for the purpose of protecting the
interests of unitholders, including the avoidance of conflicts of interest. In addition, from November 1, 2014, any buy/
sell transactions and some lending transactions of real estate and/or securities with interested parties are subject to
the approval of the Board of Directors of API.

| Alignment of the Interests of the Unitholders and Sponsor |

Through the sponsor’s contribution to API and co-ownership of part of our properties with the sponsor, API has an
established system to align the interests of the unitholders that secures collaborative operations between API and
the sponsor.

| Distribution-Based Compensation |

A performance-based compensation system linked to distribution per unit for some management fees gives the asset
manager an incentive to maximize unitholder value.

13
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Portfolio List

(As of July 13, 2016)

o . ) Occupancy
Property ’ Acquisition price Investment Total leasable Completion
Categony number Riopenviname Location (In millions of yen) ratio area (m?) (Note 1) (N:;LeZ)
L‘;’g}‘uﬂa(z,\?o?e'“s‘;t“a”d° %g‘fy‘gmae' Shibuya-ku, 45000  135%  4,904.94 Mar.2012  100.0%

Kobe Kyu Kyoryuchi
25Bankan

Minami-Yonjo-Nishi,

A-FLAG SAPPORO Chuo-ku, Sapporo City, 4,410 1.3% 21,229.16  May 1980 100.0%

e HoKkkaido
Udagawa-cho,

_____________ AFLAGSHIBUYA  shibuya-kuTokyo  ©%0  1.9% 341880 Jun. 1988  100.0%

Q plaza SHINSAIBASH]  Shinsaibashi-suji, Chuo-ku, 13,350 40% 282023 Nov.2007  88.4%

Osaka City, Osaka

TLC Ebisu Building Ebisu, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 7,400 2.2% 7,342.60  Mar. 1993 100.0%

Ebisu-minami,
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 9,640 2.9% 7,950.51  Jan. 1995 100.0%

Shiodome Building
(Note 5)

A-PLACE Shibuya
Konnoh (Note 6)

A-PLACE Gotanda
Ekimae

Nishigotanda,
Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo 7,280 2.2% 4,311.57  Nov. 1993 —
85,515.77

27,465.44

9,314.91

Market Square

Sagamihara Sagamihara City, 4,820 1.4% 15,152.42  Jun. 2014 100.0%

Kanagawa
Other Properties 54,740 16.4% 125,689.78
Total 333,940 100.0%  316,883.99 - 99.8%

(Note 1) The completion date represents the date of construction of the main building as described in the property registry. For properties with several main buildings, the construction date of the oldest
building is listed. However, for A-PLACE Shinbashi and A-FLAG SHIBUYA, the date of inspection that confirms the completion of construction written on the certificate of inspection is provided.

(Note 2) The occupancy rate is the ratio of total leased area to total leasable area on each property as of May 31, 2016.

(Note 3) For Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku and Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, the figures are in proportion to a pro rata share of our trust beneficiary co-ownership interest (75% and 50%, respectively).

(

(

Note 4) The acquisition price of TAMACHI SQUARE (Land) is the land acquisition price at the time of the initial acquisition (June 13, 2012.)

Note 5) For the Shiodome Building, API initially acquired a co-ownership interest (15%) on January 9, 2015 and subsequently acquired an additional co-ownership interest (10%) on December 16, 2015.
The upper, middle, and lower rows indicate the outline of the asset acquired as of January 9, 2015, the outline of the asset acquired as of December 16, 2015, and the total amount and the
investment ratio based on the total amount, respectively. The total leasable area is in proportion to a pro rata share of our beneficiary co-ownership interest (25%) of the property.

(Note 6) The names of Frontier Ebisu and Shibuya Konnoh Building will be renamed as A-PLACE Ebisu Higashi and A-PLACE Shibuya Konnoh, respectively, on November 1, 2016. The same applies hereafter.

QDctivia
Portfolio Map

JR Yamanote Line

Tokyu Plaza Omotesando
Harajuku

Shinbashi Place

Q plaza EBISU

A-FLAG SHIBUYA

A-FLAG AKASAKA

A-PLACE Yoyogi

A-PLACE Ikebukuro

TAMACHI SQUARE (Land)

OSAKI WIZTOWER Shiodome Building

15



Properties Acquired before the 8th Period

The ability to attract a large number of customers, supported by population flows
into major cities and stable sales

Shinbashi Place

Location: Ebisu, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Location: Shinbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo
Acquisition price: ¥20,500 million

Acquisition price: ¥8,430 million -
Fikdcsn m The property is located in %, u The property is located only B2

Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku

Location: Jingumae, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo
Acquisition price: ¥45,000 million

O
= The property is located on the corner of Omotesando Street and Meiji Street (Jingumae Crossing), one _”’°resa/7 ‘
of the centers of fashion and culture in Japan. Fashion outlets can expect significant branding effects EJR T \&

. Chiyoda
from the location. Line

L -
_n..ﬂ b l-t'?__.f'

Ebisu, a popular area for
adults. Facing the front of Ebisu
Station, the property enjoys
high visibility with a fancy, well-
lit facade made of terracotta
bars and glass.

3

E JR Yamanote
Line

Komazay,
Street a

A

m Hibiya Line

£

/
|

1 minute on foot from Shinbashi
Station, one of Japan’s leading
terminal stations with good
traffic access. The property

can also be used as an office
building, offering good flexibility
and availability to satisfy a
variety of tenants.

JR
Line

Asakusa
Line

Kyoto Karasuma Parking Building A-FLAG AKASAKA

Location: Motohonenjicho, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto
Acquisition price: ¥8,860 million

Location: Akasaka, Minato-ku, Tokyo
Acquisition price: ¥3,000 million

Hotel New Otani

Tokyu Plaza Akasaka

16

'ﬁ(\b Tokyu Plaza
[ Namboku Line ¥ The property is located in the Nishiki-Kofi = Akasaka is a 3-minute walk from e foaa
" o . .
Shijo Karasuma area, Kyoto’s 5 S"iﬁ Akasaka Station and a 5-minute B rzomon e =
Location: Nagatacho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo mﬁ;unouchi most prominent city center. As a a% walk from Akasakamitsuke Station G % ) e
Acquisition price: ¥11,450 million Hargortn tie-up parking lot for the Daimaru ég on the Tokyo Metro Chiyoda line. % X1
' Li (%) . . L 7 ;
® Adjoining the Nagatacho and Kasumigaseki area, the Akasaka area is home to many embassies and \‘\n;ef % :ystohqepartn'lent store and the " The prope'zrry |s.la hlgl:ly Y's'ble B2 Givza Live
foreign firms. The property is located in a business quarter within the area containing restaurants, bars, o %U-1 akas Lmaya yoto cl:!epartment E;g:'g’ i S :;_)mmerf:la bui dl:g baa.ng 0]
Chiyoda
hotels and offices where many office workers gather. 4%/ [ cirea Lo store, the property also serves as itotsugi Street, the busiest street e W Chiy

an important service facility for
neighboring retail stores.

with the heaviest foot traffic in the
Akasaka area.
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Kobe Kyu Kyoryuchi

25Bankan

Location: Kyomachi, Chuo-ku, Kobe City, Hyogo Acquisition price: ¥21,330 million
B In the Kyu Kyoryuchi (the Former Foreign Settlement) area, there are famous

historical spots in the port city Kobe at every turn.
As a center for tourism and commerce in West
Japan, it enjoys a prominent capability to attract
tourists and customers.

Tokaido

® The property is located on the main street, ManLIE
Nakamachi-dori, with high demand for its favorable & W
8)

location near Daimaru Kobe, the Bank of Japan ~
Kobe Branch and the Kobe City Museum. |

B The Kobe Luminarie is held each year in December
and features illuminated decorations around the
Former Foreign Settlement.

A-FLAG SAPPORO

Location: Minami-Yonjo-Nishi, Chuo-ku, Sapporo City, Hokkaido

Acquisition price: ¥4,410 million

= SAPPORO TOKYU REI HOTEL, opened in 1980, is one of the
largest hotels in Sapporo, with

a total of 575 guest rooms. E’“‘”’“—
A\ 1

= The property is located - i;gj
in Susukino, the largest % ok 5 aalea
amusement center in Hokkaido = L g OO W,
ey 107848 %% " "Sapporo TV Tower

and one of the most popular s ™=

" “Susukino”

tourist spots in Japan. L) &
) ) “Chuo Streetcar Line
B A 2-minute walk from Susukino  fuwakusho -

macrSta, Susukino

Station on the Sapporo area
Namboku line. Sapporo

Subway'Kaigan Line

Route 3 Kobe Line. /

()}
S

A-FLAG SHIBUYA

Location: Udagawa-cho, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥6,370 million

= The property is located in Shibuya, a major commercial district
that is also known as a center for younger generations and the
forefront of Japanese fashion and 1
cultural trends. m

= The Shibuya area enjoys increased Ry
convenience to Shibuya Station
due to the recently launched
shared operation of the Tokyu
Toyoko Line and the Tokyo Metro
Fukutoshin Line. Further growth is
expected, reflecting by large-scale
redevelopment plans in the area.

Tokyu Hands.

Shibuya BEAM

Shibuya Center-Gai

TO

TOKYO OFFICE

T0-1} TLC Ebisu Building

Location: Ebisu, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥7,400 million

® The adjoining site is well
known, as it has a large
concentration of office
buildings in the Ebisu area.
The property is superior in
terms of scale compared with
other office buildings in the
vicinity, with a standard floor
area of approximately 805 m?.

seSsesseecENN

10-3] A-PLACE Yoyogi

Location: Sendagaya, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥4,070 million
B The property is located within

walking distance of Shinjuku % Shinjuku
Station and is situated on Meiji Ny o
Street, with good visibility. - 4
Tenants can efficiently use 4

a column-free space of
approximately 346 m? per floor.

@ctivia

© Solid tenant demand due to the high concentration of corporate entities
3 Advantages @ Relatively low vacancy rates and stable occupancy rates compared with properties
in other major cities in Japan

T0-2| A-PLACE Ebisu Minami

Location: Ebisu-Minami, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥9,640 million
B The property is located within

walking distance of Ebisu

Station. Due to its traffic

convenience, the Ebisu area Komazava
attrz.lcts numerous ten:flnts, m Hibiya
particularly IT companies, food Line

and beverage companies,
esthetic clinics, schools, and
other service companies.

v E JR Line\

10-4] A-PLACE Aoyama

Location: Kita-Aoyama, Minato-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥8,790 million

= The property is superior in
terms of scale compared to
the office buildings located
in the vicinity. Large-scale

Jingu Kyujo

Chichibunomiya

Gaiennishi Street

renovations, including anti- UGBS tadium

. Ginza
earthquake reinforcement, ~ Ling- -1
were completed in 2008. ,
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T0-5) Luogo Shiodome

Location: Higashi Shinbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥4,540 million

= The property is located on the 8 >
north side of the west district of g "’6.7%,,'
“Shiodome Sio-Site,” which is a JaLine

known as “ltalia Gai (Italy Town),”

boasting the good traffic access.

Equipped with an earthquake-

resistant structure, it is highly

competitive with surrounding . I
office buildings.

Oedo Line

FN EmIEE Eminm

T0-7| A-PLACE lkebukuro

Location: Minami Ikebukuro, Toshima-ku, Tokyo - Acquisition price: ¥3,990 milion

= The property offers good
visibility, as it is located along
Meiji Dori. A 6-minute walk from
lkebukuro Station that enjoys
high potential as a terminal
station.

E JR Line
Seibu

Ikebukuro
L\ne/ L ]

Sl

10-6) TAMACHI SQUARE (Land)

Location: Shiba, Minato-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥2,338 million e

® A 2-minute walk from Mita g i
Station and a 4-minute walk 28 :
from Tamachi Station. Wi L/,,w &

® The area offers close proximity i
to central Tokyo with good p i
traffic access, as several lines
of JR and Toei subway line can > shibaura_
be used. R / Technology

(Note) The land acquisition price stated is at A

the time of the initial acquisition (June
13, 2012).

10-8] A-PLACE Shinbashi

Location: Shinbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥5,650 million

= A 3-minute walk from Shinbashi
Station, where seven lines converge,
including the JR Yamanote Line and
Tokyo Metro Ginza Line. In addition
to a spacious office space with a
ceiling height of 2,700 mm, it offers
quality facilities such as individual
air conditioning and an automatic
security system.

10-9| A-PLACE Gotanda

Location: Nishigotanda, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥5,730 million

®m Conveniently located 3 minutes
on foot from Gotanda Station
on the Toei Subway Asakusa
Line and 4 minutes on foot
from Gotanda Station on the ;
JR Yamanote Line, the property '
offers good access to major
areas in Tokyo with several
other train lines.

Toei Subway
Asakusa Line

10-11) OSAKI WIZTOWER

Location: Osaki, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥10,690 million

B The property is a 4-minute walk from Osaki Station with a direct
connection through the pedestrian deck.

m Osaki Station is known as a terminal station in Tokyo, since four
lines (JR Yamanote, Saikyo, Shonan Shinjuku and the Tokyo
Waterfront Area Rapid Transit Rinkai Line) cross and connect
to not only central Tokyo but also the area of Yokohama and
Saitama.

® The property is a new office building offering a spacious
office space with a standard office floor area of 899 m?
(approx. 272 tsubo) and a ceiling height of 2,800 mm.

® The property is highly appealing to tenants as it is fully
provided with business continuity plan (BCP) measures such
as the latest vibration —
control and earthquake-
proof systems,
emergency power
generation facilities
for the building that
can run continuously
for 48 hours, as well
as emergency power
generator installation
space for tenants.

Gate City Osaki

NBF Osaki Bldg.

(i\ctivia

10-10) A-PLACE Shinagawa

Location: Konan, Minato-ku, Tokyo Acquisition price: ¥3,800 million

® A 4-minute walk from JR
Shingawa Station. It provides
easy access to major areas
in Tokyo, including direct
access to Haneda Airport with
the Keikyu Line, as well as
connections to the Tokaido
Shinkansen.

Kyu-kaigan Street




T0-13) A-PLACE Ebisu Higashi

® Four train and subway lines (JR Yamanote Line, Saikyo Line, Shonan Shinjuku
Line, and Tokyo Metro Hibiya Line) enter Ebisu Station, providing good access not
only to other Tokyo areas but also Yokohama and Saitama.

m A very convenient location on the corner along Meiji Street, only a 6-minute walk
from Ebisu Station, with excellent lighting and visibility.

m Although more than 20 years old, the
property possesses competitive facilities to
attract tenants, such as individualization of
air conditioning and comprehensive renewal
of the entrance design and restroom
equipment that was completed in 2008.

\ = +Hiroo Kindergarten

+ Higashi Health Plaza

A-PLACE Ebisu Higashi

3 Higashi, Shibuya-ku,

Location

\ 5, . EBISU PRIME SQUARE Tokyo
lg 6-minute walk from
%\ -~ esesowaec  Nearest station 53'3:2::52 g; d
WapiazaEBisy 1 other lines

Acquisition price ¥7,072 million
Appraisal value  ¥7,160 million

Appraisal NOI
yield

Buiping nsiq3 911

4.4%

H3IMOL SS3NISNE NSIg3
Buiping nAyoL emesoun

A-PLACE Ebisu Minami I

T0-14) A-PLACE Shibuya Konnoh

® A 4-minute walk from Shibuya Station, where nine train lines converge.

B Although located in a commercially busy district such as Shibuya, the property
offers a green and tranquil environment, located directly across from the Konnoh
Hachimangu Shrine.

B In the area of Shibuya Station’s south exit, further development and advancement
of accessibility are expected, with several urban improvement and redevelopment
plans including the installation of new pedestrian decks and escalators.

® Owing to large-scale renovations such
as the renewal of an air conditioning
and lighting system that was carried out
over 2011 and 2012, the property offers
appealing facilities to tenants.

. Shibuya, Shibuya-ku,
: B Location
| Shibuya Sta. Tokyo
S’ . | sorpie 4-minute walk from
oS, . Shibuya Station on
R Nearest station
raeaSaton AL onacnmarg JR Yamanote and
4 .
\ B e, other lines
Shibuya; N
¥ 8 Acquisition price ¥4,810 million
Tokys Buiang . -
% Appraisal value  ¥4,900 million
B .
B % Appraisal NOI

4.4%

\

\ yield

BDctivia
A large population in the trade area

Key tenant lease terms in the medium to long term

Competitiveness with the surrounding area

Amagasaki Q’'s MALL (Land)
Location: Shioe, Amagasaki City, Hyogo
Acquisition price: ¥12,000 million

icot Nakamozu

Location: Nakamozu Town, Kita-ku, Sakai City, Osaka
Acquisition price: ¥8,500 million

-

s

I /7777774

{u////////

] -

— —

= ,,;//////f
=

e g7’
= 1L

/.

]

¥ 1110
{J

icot Tama Center

Location: Ochiai, Tama City, Tokyo
Acquisition price: ¥2,840 million

icot Mizonokuchi

Location: Mizonokuchi, Takatsu-ku, Kawasaki City, Kanagawa
Acquisition price: ¥2,710 million

A-PLACE Kanayama

Location: Kanayama, Naka-ku, Nagoya City, Aichi
Acquisition price: ¥6,980 million

Osaka Nakanoshima Building

Location: Nakanoshima, Kita-ku, Osaka City, Osaka
Acquisition price: ¥11,100 million

Market Square Sagamihara

Location: Shimokuzawa, Chuo-ku, Sagamihara City, Kanagawa
Acquisition price: ¥4,820 million

icot Omori

Location: Omorikita, Ota-ku, Tokyo
Acquisition price: ¥5,790 million
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Activia Properties Inc.

Asset Management Report for the 9th Fiscal Period

(Semi-Annual Report)
From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016
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Statements of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity
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Notes to Financial Statements

Schedule of Financial Statements
Independent Auditor’s Report

Activia Properties Inc.
1-1 Minami-Aoyama 1-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo

I. Asset Management Report
1. Review of Asset Management

(1) Investment Performance of the Investment Corporation

’i\ctivia

Fiscal period 5th period 6th period 7th period 8th period 9th period
e e e A

Operating revenue (In millions of yen) 7,778 8,174 9,120 9,701 10,175

[Rent revenue-real estate] (In millions of yen) [7,237] [7,544] [8,501] [8,780] [9,528]
Operating expenses (In millions of yen) 3,198 3,580 3,921 4,241 4,249

[Expenses related to rent business] | (In millions of yen) [2,632] [2,937] [3,210] [3,422] [3,399]
Operating income (In millions of yen) 4,580 4,594 5,199 5,460 5,926
Ordinary income (In millions of yen) 3,998 4,032 4,583 4,790 5,197
Profit (In millions of yen) 3,997 4,031 4,582 4,789 5,196
Net assets (In millions of yen) 130,052 130,086 155,353 155,560 176,729
[Change from the previous period] (%) [37.5] [0.0] [19.4] [0.1] [13.6]
Total assets (In millions of yen) 242,609 253,407 297,466 307,746 339,894
[Change from the previous period] (%) [26.5] [4.5] [17.4] [3.5] [10.4]
Unitholders’ capital (In millions of yen) 126,054 126,054 150,770 150,770 171,532
Number of units issued and outstanding (Units) 251,062 251,062 277,132 554,264 599,654
Net assets per unit (Note 1) (Yen) 518,009 518,143 280,287 280,661 294,719
Total distributions (In millions of yen) 3,997 4,031 4,582 4,789 5,196
Basic carnings per unit ggtz 2 (Yen) 16,194 16,056 8,344 8,642 8,722
Cash distributions per unit

[Earnings distributions per unit] (Yen) [15,922] [16,057] [16,535] [8,642] [8,666]

[c]z;;?:lzlslﬁlons per unit in excess of ven ] ] ] ] ]
Ssrs‘iit’;ary income to total (Note 3) ) 18 16 17 1.6 1.6
Return on unitholders’ equity (Note 3) (%) 3.6 3.1 32 3.1 3.1
;JSI;Z::;Olders’ eauty to otal (Note3) “ 53.6 51.3 52.2 50.5 52.0

. ote %

l[)(;gil‘lig];e from the previous [4.3] 23] [0.9] L1.7] [1.5]
Payout ratio (Note 3) (%) 99.9 100.0 99.9 99.9 99.9
[Other reference]
Number of properties (Properties) 27 28 30 31 32
Total leasable area (Note 4) () 268,207.86 275,398.92 312,777.90 301,802.03 312,572.42
Occupancy rate at end of period (%) 99.8 99.9 99.7 99.2 99.8
Depreciation (In millions of yen) 739 762 887 925 989
Capital expenditure (In millions of yen) 114 165 429 272 244
NOI (Note 3) [ (in millions of yen) 5,889 6,000 6,796 7,006 7,766

(Note 1) API implemented a 2-for-1 investment unit split with September 30, 2015 as the record date and October 1, 2015 as the effective date. Net assets per unit and Basic earnings per unit are
calculated on the assumption that the investment unit split was implemented at the beginning of the 7th fiscal period.
(Note 2) Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing profit by the daily weighted average number of investment units issued and outstanding (246,842 units for the 5th fiscal period and
251,062 units, 549,191 units, 554,264 units, and 595,758 units for the 6th, 7th, 8th, and 9th fiscal periods, respectively).

(Note 3) The indicators are calculated as follows:

Ordinary income to total assets: Ordinary income + Average total assets x 100; Average total assets = (Total assets at beginning of period + Total assets at end of period) + 2
Return on unitholders’ equity: Profit = Average net assets x 100; Average net assets = (Net assets at beginning of period + Net assets at end of period) + 2
Unitholders’ equity to total assets: Net assets at end of period + Total assets at end of period x 100
Payout ratio: Total distribution amount + Profit x 100 (rounded down to the first decimal place)
NOI: Rental operating income (Rental revenues-real estate + Other rental revenues — Expenses related to rental business) + Depreciation + Loss on retirement of non-current assets
(Note 4) The total leasable area is equal to the gross floor area of leasable space in each property excluding properties for which we acquire land only, based on the lease agreements for building
or floor plans as of the end of each fiscal period. Total leasable area for properties for which only land is acquired is based on the lease agreement for land or land plans as of the end of
each fiscal period. As for Osaka Nakanoshima Building (from the 5th fiscal period to the 6th fiscal period), Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku, Tokyu Plaza Akasaka and Shiodome
Building, the figures are in proportion to a pro rata share of co-ownership interests of each property (50%, 75%, 50% and 15% (from the 7th fiscal period to the 8th fiscal period) or

25% (9th fiscal period), respectively).
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(2) Asset Management during the Fiscal Period under Review

1) Transition of Investment Corporation

Activia Properties Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the “Investment Corporation”) was established on
September 7, 2011, with unitholders’ capital of ¥200 million (400 units) and TLC Township Inc.
(currently TLC Activia Investment Management Inc.) as the organizer under the Act on Investment
Trusts and Investment Corporations (Act No. 198 of 1951, including subsequent revisions), and
completed its registration in the Kanto Local Finance Bureau on September 20, 2011 (Director-
General of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau No. 73).

After that, the Investment Corporation was listed on the real estate investment trust securities market of
Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. (Securities code 3279) on June 13, 2012. On December 15, 2015, the
Investment Corporation carried out a publicly offered capital increase for the third consecutive year,
and on January 6, 2016, it carried out a third-party allotment.

“Activia” of “Activia Properties,” the name of the Investment Corporation, has been coined from the
words “activate” and “ia,” a suffix meaning “place.” By investing in and managing real estate
appropriate to its name, the Investment Corporation seeks to become an entity capable of broadly
energizing society. The Investment Corporation will also select real estate capable of sustaining
customer demand as a location for both corporate activities and urban recreation in popular areas, with
the aim of maximizing the medium- and long-term value of investors, supported by its proactive
management (management to improve the circumstances by taking initiatives and acting for the future).

In the fiscal period under review, which ended on May 31, 2016, the Investment Corporation made an
acquisition by publicly offered capital increase of Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI, which is in its “Urban
Retail Properties” portfolio of focused investment properties, and made an additional acquisition of
10% trust beneficiary co-ownership interests (jun kyoyii-mochibun) of Shiodome Building, which is in
its “Tokyo Office Properties” portfolio of focused investment properties. Consequently, the Investment
Corporation held 32 properties (with the total acquisition price of ¥326,660 million) at the end of the
fiscal period under review.

2) Investment Environment and Investment Performance

In the fiscal period under review, the Japanese economy continued to follow a path of moderate
recovery overall amid a trend of steady improvement in the employment environment and recovery in
capital investment. Nevertheless, signs of weakness have been seen in some respects amid
developments that included a slowing pace of improvements in corporate earnings due to the adverse
impact of factors such as slowing economies in China, other emerging nations in Asia, and
resource-rich countries.

With respect to the environment surrounding retail properties, the Monthly Consumer Confidence
Survey released by the Economic and Social Research Institute, Cabinet Office, Government of Japan
indicates that previously gaining consumer confidence index declined for two consecutive months
beginning in January 2016, and has subsequently been going through a phase of some volatility while
remaining largely unchanged overall. Moreover, despite a decline in per-person travel expenditure on a
quarterly basis largely due to yen appreciation from January to March 2016, demand related to inbound
tourism has been holding to high levels, while tourism consumption by overseas visitors to Japan
increased by 31.7% year on year, amid substantial gains in numbers of overseas visitors to Japan,
according to the Consumption Trend Survey for Foreigners Visiting Japan released in April by the
Japan Tourism Agency of the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism.

In the rental office market, the average vacancy rate of five central wards of Tokyo (Chiyoda-ku,
Minato-ku, Chuo-ku, Shibuya-ku and Shinjuku-ku) has been hovering in the lower half of the 4% range,
amid a situation where vacancies fell over nine consecutive months until January 2016 to 4.01%, before
marking brief gains largely due to new supply, and then subsequently heading lower once again,
according to data published by Miki Shoji Co., Ltd. Rent levels have remained on a firm upward
trajectory, having increased for 29 consecutive months running up to May 2016. Supply has been tight
relative to demand amid a situation where the downward trend in average vacancy rates has been
showing signs of spreading to major cities outside Tokyo.

In the J-REIT market, the Tokyo Stock Exchange REIT Index remained firm overall. This has partially
been attributable to expectations for more upbeat supply-demand fundamentals amid the Bank of
Japan’s decision in December 2015 to increase its rate ceiling for J-REIT securities purchases, and also
attributable to further decreases in long-term interest rates as a result of the Bank of Japan having
introduced its negative interest rate policy in February 2016. Moreover, the market has seen ongoing
expansion in J-REIT asset sizes, fueled by factors such as brisk fund raising activity involving IPOs and

’i\ctivia

publicly offered capital increases, along with property acquisitions.

The Investment Corporation acquired beneficiary rights of real estate in trust to Q plaza
SHINSAIBASHI (with the acquisition price of ¥13,350 million) and Shiodome Building (additional
acquisition of 10% co-ownership interest) (with the acquisition price of ¥20,400 million) on December
16, 2015, as trust assets by publicly offered capital increase in accordance with the basic asset
management policy set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

Consequently, total assets held by the Investment Corporation at the end of the fiscal period under
review were 32 properties (with the total acquisition price of ¥326,660 million) with the total leasable
area of 312,572 m2 (94,553 tsubo). In addition, the occupancy rate at the end of the 9th period was
99.8%.

3) Overview of Financing

In the fiscal period under review, in order to cover the acquisition costs for beneficiary interests of real
estate in trust to the above two properties and related costs, the Investment Corporation additionally
issued investment units (41,870 units) through a public offering on December 15, 2015, issued new
investment units (3,520 units) by a third-party allotment on January 6, 2016, and borrowed funds of
¥10,500 million. In addition, the Investment Corporation refinanced borrowings of ¥7,000 million on
January 12, 2016. Also, in order to diversify repayment dates, extend the average maturity and diversify
means of financing, the Investment Corporation issued investment corporation bonds of ¥2,000 million
on February 3, 2016, and used the funds to cover repayment of short-term loans payable. As a result, as
of the end of the fiscal period under review, unitholders’ capital amounted to ¥171,532 million, the total
number of investment units issued came to 599,654 units and the balance of interest-bearing debt was
¥147,150 million (borrowings of ¥137,150 million and investment corporation bonds of ¥10,000
million). The ratio of interest-bearing debt to total assets (LTV = Balance of interest-bearing debt /
Total assets x 100) was 43.3% as of the end of the fiscal period under review. The ratio of long-term
debt and fixed-interest debt to total interest-bearing debt were 98.4% and 88.6%, respectively.

The credit rating the Investment Corporation has obtained as of the end of the fiscal period under
review is as follows. This investment unit does not have a credit rating provided or made available for
inspection by a credit rating agency or one scheduled to be provided or made available for inspection by
a credit rating agency at the Investment Corporation’s request.

Credit Rating Agency Rating Outlook

Japan Credit Rating Agency (JCR) Long-term issuer rating: AA— Positive

4) Overview of Financial Results and Distributions

As a result of the above-mentioned investments, operating revenue, operating income, and ordinary
income were ¥10,175 million, ¥5,926 million, and ¥5,197 million, respectively, for the fiscal period
under review, and profit was ¥5,196 million.

In accordance with the distribution policy set forth by the Investment Corporation (Article 35 of the
Articles of Incorporation), it was decided that the all amount of unappropriated retained earnings would
be distributed except a fraction of less than ¥1 of distributions per investment unit, with the aim that as
greatest as possible distributions of profits would be included in tax deductible expenses under Article
67-15 of the Act on Special Measures Concerning Taxation (Act No. 26 of 1957, including subsequent
revisions; hereinafter referred to as the “Special Taxation Measures Act”). Consequently, distributions
per investment unit resulted in ¥8,666.
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(3) Capital Increase, etc.

A summary of capital increases until the fiscal period under review is as follows:

Number of total Total unitholders’ capital
Dt Summary investment units issued (In millions of yen) Remei's
Increase Total Increase Total
September 7, 2011 | Establishment through private 400 400 200 200 | (Note 1)
placement
June 12,2012 | Capital inerease through public | 0\ 160 | 504 500 90,834 91,034 | (Note2)
offering
Capital increase through Note 3

July 10,2012 third-party allotment 762 | 205262 339 | 91373 | (Note3)

December 16, 2013 | C2Pital ‘““z?fs:ritﬁ;"“gh Public| 43100 | 248362 | 32636 | 124010 | (Note4)
Capital increase through

January 15, 2014 third-party allotment 2,700 251,062 2,044 126,054 (Note 5)

December 17, 2014 | C2Pital mcrz‘;ffritﬁ;"“gh public 24,050 | 275,112 22,800 | 148,855 | (Note 6)
Capital increase through

January 8, 2015 third-party allotment 2,020 | 277,132 1,915 | 150,770 | (Note 7)

October 1, 2015 Investment unit split 277,132 554,264 — 150,770 (Note 8)

December 15, 2015 | Capital inerease through public |y 070 | 506 134 | joy52 | 169,922 | (Note9)

offering

Capital increase through

January 6, 2016 third-party allotment 3,520 599,654 1,610 171,532 | (Note 10)

(Note 1) The Investment Corporation was established through an investment of Tokyu Land Corporation, which underwrote the investment units with an offer price per

unit of ¥500,000.

(Note 2) API issued new investment units through a public offering at a price of ¥460,000 per unit (issue price of ¥445,050 per unit) to raise funds for the acquisition of

new properties, etc.

(Note 3) Following the public offering on June 12, 2012, API issued new investment units through a third-party allotment at a price of ¥445,050 per unit.

(Note 4) API issued new investment units through a public offering at a price of ¥782,925 per unit (issue price of ¥757,229 per unit) to raise funds for the acquisition of

new properties, etc.

(Note 5) Following the public offering on December 16, 2013, API issued new investment units through a third-party allotment at a price of ¥757,229 per unit.
(Note 6) API issued new investment units through a public offering at a price of ¥979,020 per unit (issue price of ¥948,051 per unit) to raise funds for the acquisition of

new properties.

(Note 7) Following the public offering on December 17, 2014, API issued new investment units through a third-party allotment at a price of ¥948,051 per unit.
(Note 8) A 2-for-1 investment unit split was implemented with September 30, 2015 as the record date and October 1, 2015 as the effective date.

(Note 9) API issued new investment units through a public offering at a price of ¥472,360 per unit (issue price of ¥457,418 per unit) to raise funds for the acquisition of

new properties, etc.

(Note 10) Following the public offering on December 15, 2015, API issued new investment units through a third-party allotment at a price of ¥457,418 per unit.

Fluctuation in Market Price of the Investment Securities
Changes in prices of the Investment Corporation’s investment units listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
REIT Market are as follows.

(Yen)

(4) Distributions, etc.
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The Investment Corporation decided to distribute the entire unappropriated retained earnings at the end of
the fiscal period under review excluding fractions of the distribution amount per unit that are less than ¥1 to
ensure that the maximum amount of profit distribution would be included in tax deductible expenses with
the application of a special provision of taxation (Article 67-15 of the Act on Special Measures Concerning
Taxation). Accordingly, distributions per investment unit were ¥8,666.

Fiscal period

Sth period

6th period

7th period

8th period

9th period

Business period

From December 1, 2013
to May 31, 2014

From June 1, 2014
to November 30, 2014

From December 1, 2014
to May 31, 2015

From June 1, 2015
to November 30, 2015

From December 1, 2015
to May 31, 2016

Unappropriated retained earnings
(undisposed loss)

¥3,997,550 thousand

¥4,031,303 thousand

¥4,582,505 thousand

¥4.790,093 thousand

¥5,196,849 thousand

Retained earnings ¥141 thousand ¥1 thousand ¥127 thousand ¥143 thousand ¥247 thousand
Total distribution payments ¥3.,997,409 thousand ¥4,031,302 thousand ¥4,582.377 thousand ¥4,789,949 thousand ¥5,196,601 thousand
[Distributions per unit] [¥15,922] [¥16,057] [¥16,535] [¥8,642] [¥8,666]
Of which, total distributions of profits were ¥3.,997,409 thousand ¥4,031,302 thousand ¥4,582.377 thousand ¥4.,789,949 thousand ¥5,196,601 thousand
[Distributions of profits per unit] [¥15,922] [¥16,057] [¥16,535] [¥8,642] [¥8,666]
Of which, total return on unitholders’ capital was ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand
[Return on unitholders’ capital per unit] [¥—] [¥—] [¥—] [¥—] [¥—]
Of the total return on unitholders’ capital, the total

distribution payments from the allowance for ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand
temporary difference

[Of the return on unitholders’ capital per unit, the

distribution payment from the allowance for [¥—] [¥—] [¥—] ¥—] [¥—]
temporary difference per unit]

Of the total return on unitholders’ capital, the total

distribution payments from investments and other ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand ¥— thousand

decreased distribution under tax laws
[Of the return on unitholders’ capital per unit, the
distribution payments from investments and other

decreased distribution under tax laws]

[¥=]

¥l

¥l

[¥—]

¥l

Fiscal period

Sth period

6th period

7th period

8th period

9th period

Business period

From December 1, 2013

From June 1, 2014

From December 1, 2014

From June 1, 2015

From December 1, 2015

to May 31, 2014 to November 30, 2014 to May 31, 2015 to November 30, 2015 to May 31, 2016
Highest price 877,000 981,000 1,137,000 537,000 609,000
Lowest price 777,000 834,000 975,000 421,500 481,500

(Note) A 2-for-1 investment unit split was implemented with October 1, 2015 as the effective date. The figures for the 8th period are calculated based on the assumption that the
investment unit split was implemented at the beginning of the 8th period.

(5) Future Investment Policy and Issues to Address

In the Japanese economy going forward, there are signs of ongoing improvement in the employment
environment, but a slowdown in corporate earnings. Meanwhile, the Investment Corporation will need to
focus its attention on the potential adverse impact of various developments in the global economy including
concerns of downside in business overseas against a backdrop of slowing economies in China and other

emerging markets, monetary policy in the U.S., and the U.K.’s withdrawal from the European Union.

In the rental office market, despite wariness with respect to business sentiment among corporations, supply
of office space in central Tokyo over the years 2016 to 2017 is likely to be somewhat lower than in previous
years. Consequently, amid the current prospect of continuing tight supply relative to demand, this is likely to

result in an ongoing trend of rising rents despite slowing growth, along with lower vacancy rates. With

respect to the environment surrounding retail properties, we expect a shift to gradual recovery in personal
consumption against a backdrop of the government’s opting to hold off on implementing the consumption
tax hike, combined with ongoing circumstances in terms of a favorable employment environment. As for the
J-REIT market, activity is likely to remain brisk with respect to financing and property acquisitions
involving J-REITs underpinned by a strong financing environment particularly in terms of funds targeting
relatively high rates of return flowing into the market due to the Bank of Japan’s stance on holding to its
monetary easing policy which includes its strategy of negative interest rates. Nevertheless, we will need to
pay attention to potential adverse effects of financial and capital market volatility, brought about by
developments that include growing uncertainties in overseas markets, trends with respect to U.S. interest
rate policy, and moves by the U.K. involving its withdrawal from the European Union. Amid this
environment, the Investment Corporation aims to keep expanding size of its assets and working to control
LTV while making careful investment decisions that help to improve unitholder value by drawing on its
own channels and its sponsor’s pipeline.

1) Basic Policy

The Investment Corporation’s basic policies are to invest in assets, with targeted investments in Urban
Retail and Tokyo Office properties; utilize the Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Group’s value chain based on
the comprehensive support system; and a governance structure that maximizes investor value.
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2) External Growth Strategy

The Investment Corporation will invest in Urban Retail and Tokyo Office properties as a main target. It
will make its investment decisions carefully, concentrating on selecting properties in excellent
locations, including surrounding areas, and thoroughly considering individual factors such as use, size,
quality, specifications, and tenants in order to construct a competitive portfolio in the medium to long
term.

To acquire these competitive assets on an ongoing basis, the Investment Corporation will work to
maintain and improve the quality of its portfolio and will seek to expand the size of its assets by
carefully selecting investment assets based on the information it receives under its sponsor support
agreement with Tokyu Land Corporation and its support agreement with five group companies in the
Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Group. It will also acquire properties through the exclusive know-how and
information-gathering network of the asset management company.

3) Internal Growth Strategy

4

)

The Investment Corporation will operate, manage, and refurbish its portfolio to maintain and improve
the competitiveness of its facilities through a comprehensive understanding of the features of its overall
portfolio and its individual assets under management, based on the unique expertise of its asset
management company. The Investment Corporation will also seek to manage its portfolio in a stable
manner and strengthen its earnings by establishing appropriate operational and management systems
tailored to the specific characteristics of the assets it has invested in, and through regular and
non-regular inspections by the property management company that has considerable experience in the
operation and management of real estate.

The Investment Corporation will also maintain and improve the value of its assets through its expertise
in internal growth through operating and managing properties. It will maximize the competitiveness of
its assets through the ongoing assistance of Tokyu Land Corporation and other support companies,
which, through their face-to-face business with consumers, have rich information regarding consumer
needs and developments in industries such as retail and services.

With respect to the property management business for the assets under management, leasing support
has been provided from Tokyu Land Corporation, Tokyu Land SC Management Corporation or Tokyu
Community Corporation.

Financial Strategy

Having the sound financial strategy in an effort to conservatively control LTV as well as make stable
long-term loans and diversify maturities (diversifying repayment dates), the Investment Corporation
will endeavor to build stable financial base with solid bank formation. In addition, with the aim of
diversifying means of raising funds, the Investment Corporation will issue investment corporation
bonds while paying close attention to trends in financial markets. The Investment Corporation will also
continue to flexibly issue new investment units while paying appropriate attention to dilution of
investment units with the aim of achieving long-term and stable growth.
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(6) Significant Matters after Book Closing
Not applicable

< Reference Information >
The Investment Corporation acquired the property listed below with borrowings, etc. in accordance with the
basic asset management policy set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

(TO-15) A-PLACE Gotanda Ekimae (Note 1)
Type of assets Trust beneficiary interest
Acquisition price ¥7,280 million
Acquisition date July 1, 2016

Location 5-1 Nishigotanda 1-chome, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo
Use Office and retail

Land area 752.59 m?

Gross floor area 5,961.02 m?

Structure SRC/ 9 floors above and 1 floor underground
Month and year of ~ November 1993

completion

Ownership Land: Owned and partial leasehold (Note 2)

Building: Owned
(Note 1) Property name of Gotanda Sankei Building was changed to A-PLACE Gotanda Ekimae on
July 1, 2016.
(Note 2) The partial lease hold area based on the official registry is 35.17 m2.
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2. Overview of the Investment Corporation

@ctz via
(3) Matters Relating to Officers, etc.

1) Executive Director, Supervisory Directors, and Independent Auditor during the Fiscal Period under Review

(1) Unitholders’ Capital Total amount of compensation
p Titl N £ offi Mai for each position during the
Sth period 6th period 7th period 8th period 9th period tle ER0E i OIS, G, BT COIETEI POsih E, business period under review
As of May 31, | As of November | Asof May 31, | AsofNovember | As of May 31, (In thousands of yen)
- 2014 30,2014 2015 30, 2015 2016 Executive TLC Activia Investment Management Inc.,
Total number gf authorized (Units) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 Director Michie Kawai Representative Director, President and Chief —
%‘;:Ttﬁ?;l{’gl :)tlE investment (ote 1) Executive Officer
units issued (Units) 251,062 251,062 277,132 554,264 599,654 v ke Yamad Yamada, Goya and Suzuki Law Office
(In millions Supervisory onosuke Yamada Managing Partner
Unitholders’ capital £ ¥126,054 ¥126,054 ¥150,770 ¥150,770 ¥171,532 Directors 3,300
of yen) (Note 1) Yoshinori Ariga Ariga Yoshinori Accounting Office
Number of unitholders (Persons) 7,995 7,071 6,832 6,526 6,502 Managing Partner
Independent | Ernst & Young ShinNihon o 33,400
. . Audit LLC Note 2
(2) Matters Relating to Investment Units udror (Note 2)

The top 10 unitholders as of the end of the fiscal period under review are as follows:

(Note 1) Executive Directors or Supervisory Directors do not hold any investment units of the Investment Corporation under their or another person’s name. Supervisory
Directors may serve as directors of companies other than those mentioned above, but there are no mutual business interests whatsoever between such companies and

. . . the I 1 t Co tion.
Name Number of units Percentage of total units issued (%) (Note 2) CC e nf\: fo?r?hoer% 1211 Auditor includes fees for preparing comfort letters related to the issuance of new investment units in December 2015 and the
owned (NOIC) issuance of investment corporation bonds in Februrary 2016.
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust accounts) 156,596 26.11 2) Policy Regarding the Dismissal of or Refusal to Reappoint the Accounting Auditor
Tokyu Land Corporation 61,913 10.32 The Investment Corporation will dismiss the accounting auditor in conformity with the provisions of
the Investment Trust Act and determine not to reappoint the accounting auditor through a resolution of
The Master Trust Bank of Ltd. (Trust t . . . . . . .
¢ Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust accounts) 58,773 980 a general meeting of unitholders while comprehensively considering various factors.
Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd.
(Securities investment trust accounts) 54,685 o-11
3) Disciplinary Action Ordering a Suspension of Operations to Which the Independent Auditor was

The Nomura Trust and Banking Co., Ltd. .
(Investment accounts) 20,712 3.45 Subject the past two years
State Street Bank & Trust Company 2DOelteglls of thfe ﬁlsmp.hnary action announced by the Financial Services Agency as of December 22,
(Standing proxy: The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking 10,722 1.78 R are as fo OWS‘_ Lo X
Corporation Limited. Tokyo office) (i) Target of the dlSClphn?ry action

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC
THE BANK OF NEW YORK, NON — TREATY JASDEC
ACCOUNT .. N .

Standi . The Bank of Tokvo-Mitsubishi UEJ. Ltd 9941 1.65 (i1) Contents of the disciplinary action
(Standing proxy: The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.) - Suspension from accepting new engagements for three months
NOMURA BANK (LUXEMBOURG) S.A. 8.483 141 (from January 1, 2016, to March 31, 2016)
(Standing proxy: Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation) ’ - Ordered to improve its operations (Improvement of audit management systems)
State Street Bank & Trust Company 505223 847 . Note: In addition, commencement of tri.al. procedures.for the administrative monetary penalty
(Standing proxy: Mizuho Bank, Ltd.) ’ : payment order of approximately ¥2.1 billion was decided on the same day.
THE FUJI FIRE AND MARINE INSURANCE COMPANY, (iii) Reasons for the action
LIMITED 5,623 0.93 . . - .
(Standing proxy: Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.) - Seven certified public accountants from Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC (“the firm”) had, in
- — negligence of due care, attested to financial statements of TOSHIBA CORPORATION for fiscal
Total 395,933 66.02 20009, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012 (for the years ended March 31, 2010, 2012 and 2013) that

(Note) The percentage of total units issued is calculated by rounding down to the second decimal place.

contained material misstatements.
- The firm’s operations were deemed significantly inappropriate.

(4) Asset Manager, Custodian Company, and Administrative Agent

Consignment classification Name

Asset manager TLC Activia Investment Management Inc.

Asset custodian Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

General administrator (administration of the unitholders’ registry, etc.) Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

General administrator (accounting data processing, etc.) Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

General administrator (administration related to the operation of administrative

. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
instruments)

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

General administrator (administration related to investment corporate bonds) Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank. Limited
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3. Assets of the Investment Corporation
(1) Composition of Assets of the Investment Corporation

(3) Details of Assets, such as Real Estate, Incorporated into the Portfolio

’i\cti via

A summary of properties owned and under management by the Investment Corporation as of the end of the
fiscal period under review is as follows:

8th period 9th period
As of November 30, 2015 As of May 31, 2016
Type of assets Category Total amount of Total amount of
assets owned Ratio to total assets assets owned Ratio to total assets
(In millions of yen) (%) (In millions of yen) (%)
(Note 1) (Note 1)
Urban Retail Properties — — — —
Tokyo Office Properties — — — —
Real estate
Other Properties — — — —
Subtotal — - — —
Urban Retail Properties 129,841 422 142,985 42.1
Tokyo Office Properties 109,126 355 129,392 38.1
Real estate in trust
Other Properties 54,335 17.7 54,166 15.9
Subtotal 293,303 95.3 326,543 96.1
Total real estate, etc. 293,303 95.3 326,543 96.1
Deposits and other assets 14,442 4.7 13,350 39
307,746 100.0 339,894 100.0
Total assets (Note 2)
(293,303) (95.3) (326,543) (96.1)

(Note 1) The total amount of assets owned is based on the amounts on the balance sheet as of the end of each fiscal period (for real estate and real estate in trust, book value
less depreciation expenses), in accordance with the asset valuation method set forth in the Articles of Incorporation of the Investment Corporation.

(Note 2) Total assets represent the amounts recorded on the balance sheet as of the end of each fiscal period. The figures in parentheses represent portions that practically
correspond to real estate owned in the object assets.

(2) Major Assets Owned

Major assets owned by the Investment Corporation (the 10 largest properties by book value) as of the end of

the fiscal period under review are as follows:

Book value at end of | Total leasable area Total leased area Occupancy rate L Oftre:n?ll
Property name period (m?) (m?) (%) revet:nlue O for Major use
(In millions of yen) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) renta (f;;e““es
Shiodome Building (Note 4) 50,811 20,097.18 19,740.37 98.2 9.8 Office
Tokyu Plaza Omotesando 44,961 4,904.94 4,904.94 100.0 107 | Retail
Harajuku (Note 4)
Kobe Kyu Kyoryuchi 25Bankan 21,319 19,653.90 19,653.90 100.0 7.6 Retail
Shinbashi Place 20,381 9,156.01 9,156.01 100.0 (Note 5) Retail
Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI 13,420 2,820.23 2,493.82 88.4 2.7 Retail
Amagasaki Q’s MALL (Land) 12,113 27,465.44 27,465.44 100.0 34 Retail
Tokyu Plaza Akasaka (Note 4) 11,849 16,579.26 16,579.26 100.0 59 Retail
Osaka Nakanoshima Building 11,140 20,235.57 20,235.57 100.0 5.0 Office
OSAKI WIZTOWER 10,954 7,193.28 7,193.28 100.0 3.0 Office
A-PLACE Ebisu Minami 9,493 7,950.51 7,950.51 100.0 34 Office
Total 206,446 136,056.32 135,373.10 99.5 —

(Note 1) Total leasable area refers to leasable space for each property excluding properties for which we acquire only land, based on lease agreements for building or floor
plans as of May 31, 2016 and leasable space for properties for which we acquire only land, based on lease agreements for land or land plans as of May 31, 2016.

(Note 2) Total leased area refers to the total of the leased area of each property based on lease agreements as of May 31, 2016. For properties with master lease agreements,
total leased area refers to the total of leased areas of each property and is actually leased based on sublease agreements with end-tenants.

(Note 3)  Occupancy rate refers to the percentage of total leased area for each property to total leasable area for each property as of May 31, 2016, rounding down to the first

decimal place.

(Note 4)  As for Shiodome Building, Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku, and Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, the figures are in proportion to a pro rata share of our trust beneficiary
co-ownership interest of each property (25%, 75% and 50%, respectively).
(Note 5) Ratio of rental revenue to total rental revenues is not disclosed, as consent from tenants has not been obtained.

Assessed value at | ook valye at end
Total leasable area end of period of period
Property name Location Asset type (]5::? b (In m}i]lelril(;ns of (In sl efFgam)
(Note 2) (Note 3)
Tokyu Plaza Omotesando . . Trust beneficiary
Harajuku (Note 4) 30-3 Jingu-mae 4-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo interests 4,904.94 54,525 44,961
Tokyu Plaza Akasaka (Note 4) | 143 Nagatacho 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Trust beneficiary 16,579.26 14,000 11,849
Tokyo interests
Q plaza EBISU 8-12 Ebisu 1-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo ﬁ‘;ﬁ‘e;esneﬁc‘a‘y 4,024.88 10,200 8,341

% | Shinbashi Place 12-9 Shinbashi 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo ﬁ‘;ﬁ;gﬁ"eﬁ“*“y 9,156.01 24,700 20381

=1 - — —

g Kyglg Karasuma Parking 678 Motohonenjicho, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto Trust beneficiary 21,616.04 10,900 8,814

E Building City, Kyoto interests

E | A-FLAG AKASAKA 3-6 Akasaka 4-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo iT‘:;;:tZ“ﬁ“”y 2,280.22 3,520 3,104

o]

& - —

< | Kobe KyuKyoryuchi 25 Kyomachi, Chuo-ku, Kobe City, Hyogo | LTust beneficiary 19,653.90 25,100 21319

£ 25Bankan

=) A-FLAG SAPPORO 1, Mmaml-.YonJo-Nus.hl 5-chome, Chuo-ku, Trusl beneficiary 2122916 6,550 4411

Sapporo City, Hokkaido interests
A-FLAG SHIBUYA 32-13, Udagawa-cho, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo I;Le‘i;:“"ﬁmry 3,413.80 7,190 6,380
1-10 Shinsaibashi-suji 1-chome, Chuo-ku, Trust beneficiary
Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI Osaka City, Osaka interests 2,820.23 13,400 13,420
Subtotal 105,678.44 170,085 142,985
TLC Ebisu Building 18-18 Ebisu 1-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo iT‘;‘;i‘e:’fs"EﬁC‘ary 7,342.60 8,800 7,370
A-PLACE Ebisu Minami 15-1 Ebisu-minami 1-chome, Shibuya-ku, Trust beneficiary 7,950.51 11,800 9.493
Tokyo interests
A-PLACE Yoyogi %?)E)/SOSendagaya 5-chome, Shibuya-ku, Trust beneficiary 3.106.17 4330 3,984
A-PLACE Aoyama 11-3 Kita-Aoyama 2-chome, Minato-ku, Trust beneficiary 7,303.69 9,110 8,707
Tokyo interests
Luogo Shiodome 3-3 Higashi-Shinbashi 2-chome, Minato-ku, Trust beneficiary 447635 5,660 4385
Tokyo interests

% | TAMACHI SQUARE (Land) 26-24 Shiba 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo Trust beneficiary 1,287.96 2,620 2,362

h= —— -

% A-PLACE Ikebukuro 16-2? Minami Ikebukuro 1-chome, Trust beneficiary 3,409.73 4730 3,860

Z Toshima-ku, Tokyo interests

8 | A-PLACE Shinbashi 11-1 Shinbashi 4-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo | Lrust beneficiary 5,052.14 6,430 5,793

& interests

S RN . - ~ —

2 | A-PLACE Gotanda 27-3, Nishigotanda 2-chome, Shinagawa-ku, Trust beneficiary 4,028.69 6,300 5,662

z Tokyo interests

< -

& | A-PLACE Shinagawa 840, Konan 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo | %t beneficiary 2,986.36 4230 3,804
OSAKI WIZTOWER 11-1 Osaki 2-chome, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo | L1ust beneficiary 7,193.28 13,600 10,954
Shiodome Building (Note 4) | 2-20 Kaigan 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo | 1%t beneficiary 20,007.18 52,000 50,811
Frontier Ebisu (Note 5) 13-11 Higashi 3-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo iT‘;‘;i‘e;es"EﬁC"‘“y 4,010.69 7,360 7213
Shibuya Konnoh Building 3-1 Shibuya 3-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Trust beneficiary 2,958.85 5,000 4,987
(Note 5) interests

Subtotal 81,204.20 141,970 129,392
3-1 Shioe 1-chome, Amagasaki City, Hyogo
R, (main building) Trust beneficiary
Amagasaki Q's MALL (Land) 2-3 Shioe 1-chome, Amagasaki City, Hyogo | interests 27.465.44 13,100 12,113
(sports club)
icot Nakamozu 42_8-2 Nakamozucho 3-cho, Kita-ku, Sakai Trust beneficiary 28,098.02 10,000 8,307
City, Osaka interests

| icot Mizonokuchi 11-1 Mlzgnqkuchl 6-chome, Takatsu-ku, Trust beneficiary 14,032.05 3210 2671

8 Kawasaki City, Kanagawa interests

= - -

§ icot Tama Center 35 Ochiai 1-chome, Tama City, Tokyo ;ll;rll:te:lesneﬁclary 5,181.58 3,450 2,727

2 - - - -

5 | A-PLACE Kanayama 14-18 Kan.ayama 1. chome, Naka-ku, Trust beneficiary 9.314.91 7,780 6.635

= Nagoya City, Aichi

3 X - - — -

Osaka Nakanoshima Building 2 .2 Nakanoshima 2-chome, Kita-ku, Osaka Trust beneficiary 2023557 12,800 11,140
City, Osaka interests

icot Omori §-2, Omorikita 1-chome, Ota-ku, Tokyo Trust beneficiary 6,209.79 6,360 5742

interests (Note 6)

Market Square Sagamihara 777-2 Shimokuzawa, Chuo-ku, Trust beneficiary 15,152.42 4,960 4,827
Sagamihara-shi, Kanagawa interests

Subtotal 125,689.78 61,660 54,166

Total 312,572.42 373,715 326,543
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(Note 1)
(Note 2)
(Note 3)
(Note 4)
(Note 5)

(Note 6)

Total leasable area refers to leasable space for each property excluding properties for which we acquire only land, based on lease agreements for building or floor
plans as of May 31, 2016 and leasable space for properties for which we acquire only land, based on lease agreements for land or land plans as of May 31, 2016.

The appraisal of each property is commissioned to the Japan Real Estate Institute, Daiwa Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd., The Tanizawa Sogo Appraisal Co., Ltd.,
Japan Valuers Co., Ltd. or Morii Appraisal & Investment Consulting, Inc. Assessed value at end of period stands for the appraised value described in each real estate
appraisal report, with May 31, 2016 taken as the point of evaluation

Book value at end of period stands for the book value minus depreciation as of May 31, 2016, rounded down to the nearest ¥ million.

As for Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku, Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, and Shiodome Building, the figures are in proportion to a pro rata share of our trust beneficiary
co-ownership interest of each property (75%, 50% and 25%, respectively).

Property names of Frontier Ebisu and Shibuya Konnoh Building are scheduled to be changed to A-PLACE Ebisu Higashi and A-PLACE Shibuya Konnoh,
respectively, on November 1, 2016; the same shall apply hereinafter.

The calculation of total leasable area for icot Omori includes part of an external bicycle parking lot (approximately 21 m?) and part of a common area on the second
floor (approximately 28 m?).

’i\ctivia

Changes in key figures in the rental business (figures by property owned and under management by the Investment Corporation)

8th period 9th period
(From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015) (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016)
Number | Occupancy | Revenues related to Ratio of rental Number | Occupancy | Revenues related to Ratio of rental
Property name . .
of rate rent business revenue to total of rate rent business revenue to total
tenants (%) (In millions of yen) | rental revenues tenants (%) (In millions of yen) | rental revenues
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) (%) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) (%)
Tokyu Plaza
Omotesando Harajuku 29 100.0 1,108 11.7 29 100.0 1,084 10.7
(Note 4)
Tokyu Plaza Akasaka
98 99.9 607 6.4 99 100.0 597 59
(Note 4)
Q plaza EBISU 4 100.0 273 29 4 100.0 268 2.6
g Shinbashi Place 1 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5) 1 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5)
§ Kyoto Karasuma
& . o 2 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5) 2 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5)
— | Parking Building
]
~| A-FLAG AKASAKA 8 100.0 112 1.2 8 100.0 107 1.1
=
—§ Kobe Kyu Kyoryuchi
=) 7 100.0 727 7.7 7 100.0 778 7.6
25Bankan
A-FLAG SAPPORO 18 100.0 496 52 18 100.0 432 42
A-FLAG SHIBUYA 2 100.0 209 22 2 100.0 205 2.0
laza
Qp — — — — 5 88.4 270 2.7
SHINSAIBASHI
Subtotal 169 100.0 — — 175 99.7 — —
TLC Ebisu Building 10 87.5 264 2.8 12 100.0 274 2.7
A-PLACE Ebisu
o 9 100.0 344 3.6 9 100.0 345 3.4
Minami
A-PLACE Yoyogi 3 100.0 123 1.3 3 100.0 126 1.2
A-PLACE Aoyama 8 100.0 251 2.6 8 100.0 271 2.7
Luogo Shiodome 6 100.0 170 1.8 6 100.0 166 1.6
TAMACHI SQUARE
» 1 100.0 62 0.7 1 100.0 62 0.6
-g (Land)
b}
S| A-PLACE Ikebukuro 1 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5) 1 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5)
=%}
fé A-PLACE Shinbashi 8 97.8 191 2.0 10 100.0 190 1.9
=
2 A-PLACE Gotanda 11 100.0 179 1.9 10 100.0 176 1.7
Z
£| A-PLACE Shinagawa 8 100.0 110 1.2 8 100.0 111 1.1
OSAKI WIZTOWER 6 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5) 5 100.0 301 3.0
Shiodome Building
35 93.2 674 7.1 36 98.2 994 9.8
(Note 4)
Frontier Ebisu 9 100.0 105 1.1 9 100.0 160 1.6
Shibuya Konnoh
o 2 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5) 2 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5)
Building
Subtotal 117 97.5 — — 120 99.6 — —
Amagasaki Q’s
1 100.0 345 3.6 1 100.0 345 3.4
MALL (Land)
icot Nakamozu 2 100.0 310 33 2 100.0 310 3.1
icot Kongo (Note 6) — — (Note 5) (Note 5) - - - -
" icot Mizonokuchi 1 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5) 1 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5)
8
é icot Tama Center 10 100.0 143 1.5 9 100.0 142 1.4
o
‘:—“: A-PLACE Kanayama 21 100.0 284 3.0 20 100.0 280 2.8
5
g Osaka Nakanoshima
. 40 97.9 516 54 41 100.0 506 5.0
Building
icot Omori 9 100.0 234 2.5 9 100.0 232 23
Market Square
. 3 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5) 3 100.0 (Note 5) (Note 5)
Sagamihara
Subtotal 87 99.7 — — 86 100.0 — —
Total 373 99.2 9,500 100.0 381 99.8 10,175 100.0
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(Note 1) The number of tenants refers to the total number of tenants for each property at the end of each fiscal period, based on each lease agreement. In the case where a master
lease agreement is in place, the number of end tenants is counted. In the case of a property for which only land is acquired, the total number of tenants on the land is

counted.

(Note 2) Occupancy rate refers to the percentage of total leased area to total leasable area for each property as of the end of each fiscal period, rounding down to the first decimal

place.
(Note 3) Rental revenue includes other rental revenue.

(Note 4)  As for Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku, Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, and Shiodome Building, the figures are in proportion to a pro rata share of our trust beneficiary
co-ownership interest of each property (75%, 50% and 15% (8th period and from December 1, 2015 to December 15, 2015 in 9th period) or 25% (from December 16,

2015 to May 31, 2016 in 9th period), respectively).

(Note 5) Rental revenue and the ratio of rental revenue to total rental revenues are not disclosed, as consent from tenants has not been obtained.

(Note 6) icot Kongo was transferred as of July 8, 2015.

(4) Details of Specified Transaction

The outstanding contract amount and fair value of specified transactions as of the end of the fiscal

period under review are as follows:

(In thousands of yen)

4. Capital Expenditure for Assets under Management
(1) Scheduled Capital Expenditure
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The following table shows major capital expenditure for renovation works, etc., scheduled for
the properties owned by the Investment Corporation at the end of the fiscal period under review.
The estimated construction cost below includes the portion expensed for accounting purposes.

Estimated construction cost
(In millions of yen)

Notional contract amount (Note 1) Fair value
Classification Transaction
Over 1 year (Note 2)
Interest rate swaps
Over-the-counter 10,000,000 10,000,000 —
(Receive floating pay fixed)
Total 10,000,000 10,000,000 —

(Note 1) The contract amount of interest rate swaps is presented based on its notional principal.

(Note 2) The statement of the fair value is omitted for those transactions that satisfy requirements for special treatment based on accounting standards for financial

instruments.

(5) Other Assets

There are no major incorporations of other specified assets that are the principal investment targets

of the Investment Corporation as of the end of the fiscal period under review.

annex guest rooms

Name of real property .
(Location) Purpose Scheduled period Total Payment Total
for the amount
amount . )
period paid
TLC Ebisu Building Replacement work of air | . \jovember 2015
) conditioning to August 2016 99 - -
(Shibuya, Tokyo) (Third period) g
A-FLAG Sapporo Renovations of new From March 2015 87 B B
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) annex guest rooms to June 2016
Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI S From September 2016
(Osaka, Osaka) Commercialization work to October 2016 50 - -
Replacement of air
A-FLAG Sapporo conditioning units of From October 2016 30 N N
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) main building guest room | to November 2016
systems
A-FLAG Sapporo Installation work of new | Ao 2016
. well water filtration 28 - -
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) . to June 2016
devices
A-FLAG Sapporo l::f;:ﬁ“;zni;onita?;al heat From September 2016 27 B B
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) chang to October 2016
building
Tokyu Plaza Akasaka Maintenance of outer From May 2016 24
wall on north- and to November 2016 B B
(Chiyoda, Tokyo) west-side lower stories (Note)
A-FLAG Sapporo Replacement of FCUs in | From March 2016 1 B B
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) new annex guest rooms | to June 2016
Replacement of air
A-FLAG Sapporo conditioning units of new | From September 2016 16 B B
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) annex small banquet hall |to September 2016
systems
A-PLACE Aoyama Repair of rainwater From October 2016 16 B B
(Minato, Tokyo) drainage pipes to November 2016
Replacement of air
A-FLAG Sapporo . . From September 2016
. conditioning units of new 15 - -
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) to October 2016
annex lobby systems
Replacement of air
A-FLAG Sapporo conditioning units of From September 2016 14 B B
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) main building hotel to September 2016
backyard systems
Tokyu Plaza Akasaka Renovations of hotel From July 2016 13 B B
(Chiyoda, Tokyo) modular bathrooms, etc. |to September 2016 (Note)
A-FLAG Sapporo E};}i)ilaace;neinzsl;;/i::al From February 2016 1 B B
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) 8¢ p1p to June 2016

(Note) As for Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, the figures are in proportion to a pro rata share of our trust beneficiary co-ownership interest of the property (50%) of the

total renovation cost.
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(2) Capital Expenditures during the Period

The following table shows major construction works for owned assets conducted by the Investment
Corporation that falls into capital expenditure during the fiscal period under review. Capital
expenditure amounted to ¥244 million for the fiscal period, and repair and maintenance expenses that
were accounted for as expense in the period came to ¥78 million. On aggregate, construction work of

¥323 million was carried out during the fiscal period.

Name of real property p Construction cost
(Location) Purpose Period (In millions of yen)
TLC Ebisu Building Replacement work ofair | grom May 2015 .
(Shibuya, Tokyo) (Second pe réio d) to January 2016
. Repair and replacement of

Osgkg Nakanoshima substation panels (control From July 2015

Building . 20

(Osaka, Osaka) equipment, etc.) to March 2016

’ (Second period)
A-FLAG Sapporo ll? eplacement Olf From January 2016
(Sapporo, Hokkaido) umap/cargo clevator to January 2016 14
’ machinery and equipment
. Exchange work of Scott

Osa_lka_ Nakanoshima connection transformers in | From March 2016

Building electric pipe space on each  [to March 2016 12

(Osaka, Osaka) floor pipe sp

Tokyu Plaza Omotesando

Harajuku Partial remodeling work g‘ﬁ;gﬁ rzc(})l 1260 16 (No tlel)

(Shibuya, Tokyo)

Tokyu Plaza Akasaka Replacement of plumbing From September 2015 11

(Chiyoda, Tokyo) for cold and hot water, etc.  |to February 2016 (Note)

Other 56
Total 244

(Note) As for Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku and Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, the figures are in proportion to a pro rata share of our trust beneficiary co-ownership
interest of each property (75%, 50%, respectively) of the total renovation cost.

(3) Money Accumulated for Long-Term Repair Plan
Not applicable

5. Expenses and Liabilities

(1) Details of Expenses Related to Asset Management, etc.
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(In thousands of yen)

8th period 9th period
Item (From June 1, 2015 (From December 1, 2015
to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016)

(a) Asset management fees (Note) 703,280 747,023
(b) Asset custody fees 8,490 9,502
(c) Administrative service fees 26,348 25,059
(d) Directors’ compensation 3,300 3,300
(e) Other operating expenses 77,059 64,988

Total 818,478 849,873

(Note) Asset management fees contain acquisition fees that were included in the book value of acquired properties (8th fiscal period: ¥83,174 thousand; 9th fiscal period:
¥168,750 thousand) and transfer fees that were deducted from the gain or loss on the disposal of properties (8th fiscal period: ¥9,400 thousand).
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(2) BOrrOWlngS (it vy . Balance as of November 30, 2015 Balance as of May 31, 2016 AV’"“(‘:‘/‘;"“ e N Repayment | Use of S
. L . . Lender (In millions of yen) (in millions of yen) o method funds
The status of borrowings from financial institutions as of May 31, 2016 is as follows:
June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 0.866 June 13,2016
June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 0953 June 13,2017
June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 1.063 June 13,2018
"~ i N 2;
Category e Balance as of November 30, 2015 Balance as of May 31,2016 Average (I:l/t)eresl rate N T Use of Remarks April 19,2013 800 800 0.919 April 19,2019 (Note 2)
Lender (In millions of yen) (In millions of yen) ot 1) method funds December 19, 2013 1,060 1,060 1.080 December 19, 2020
Slvmn\om\) Mitsui Trust Bank, October 1, 2015 2.400 2,400 0235 June 30,2016 Lump-sum (Note 2) Unsecured, January 10, 2014 160 160 0.938 January 10, 2020
Limited repayment non-guaranteed
January 10,2014 1340 1,340 1079 January 10,2021
Subtotal 2,400 2,400
July 92014 1,400 - 0275 January 9,2016
April 19,2013 400 400 0919 April 19,2019 (Note 4)
July 9,2014 600 600 0.725 January 10, 2020
December 19, 2013 530 530 1.080 December 19, 2020
(Note2) 7 9.2015 780 780 0.498 I 9,2018
January 10, 2014 80 80 0.938 January 10, 2020 M izuho Bank, Ltd. anuary 9, X January 9,
January 9, 2015 500 500 0523 3 9.2019
January 10,2014 670 670 1.079 January 10,2021 anuary anuary (Note2)
June 13,2014 6,000 6,000 0.265 December 13,2016 January 9, 2013 40 340 0344 July 9, 2019
9,202
July 9,2014 700 - 0275 January 9,2016 (Note 4) January 9, 2015 840 840 0.737 January 9, 2022
Ty 9.2014 00 00 0725 Jamuary 10,2020 June 15,2015 1,500 1.500 0.947 June 15,2022
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Jamuary 92015 390 390 008 Jamaary 92018 June 15,2015 1,500 1,500 1063 June 15,2023 (Note 4)
Corporation E
January 9, 2015 250 250 0.523 January 9, 2019 September 30, 2015 1,250 1,250 (Note 5) March 30, 2023
January 9, 2015 170 170 0.544 July 9,2019 December 16, 2015 - 200 0.657 June 15, 2022
(Note 2)
January 9, 2015 420 420 0.737 January 9, 2022 (Note 2) December 16, 2015 - 1,200 0.854 June 17,2024
December 16, 2015 - 100 0.657 June 15,2022 January 12,2016 - 1,400 0.784 January 12,2024 (Note 4)
December 16, 2015 - 625 0.754 June 15, 2023 June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 0.866 June 13,2016
December 16, 2015 - 600 0.854 June 17, 2024 June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 0.953 June 13,2017
January 12,2016 - 700 0.784 January 12,2024 (Note 4) June 13,2012 3.000 3,000 1.063 June 13,2018
June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 0.866 June 13,2016 April 19,2013 800 800 0919 April 19,2019 (Note 2)
June 13, 2012 3,000 3,000 0953 June 13, 2017 (Note2) December 19, 2013 1,060 1,060 1.080 December 19, 2020
June 13, 2012 3,000 3,000 1063 June 13, 2018 January 10,2014 160 160 0.938 January 10, 2020
March 29, 2013 500 500 0270 March 31, 2017 January 10,2014 1,340 1,340 1.079 January 10,2021
0.683 (Note 4)
March 29, 2013 5.000 5,000 March 31,2018 July 9. 2014 1,400 R 0275 January 9. 2016
(Note 5) v J - ey > (Note 4)
April 19,2013 800 800 0.919 April 19,2019 July 9, 2014 600 600 0.725 January 10, 2020
December 19, 2013 1,060 1,060 1.080 December 19, 2020 The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi January 9,2015 780 780 0.498 January 9,2018
(Note 2) UFJ, Lid
January 10,2014 160 160 0938 January 10, 2020 January 9,2015 500 500 0523 January 9,2019
(Note 2)
January 10,2014 1340 1340 1.079 January 10, 2021 January 9,2015 340 340 0544 July 9,2019
July 9.2014 1.400 - 0275 January 9, 2016 Note ) January 9, 2015 840 840 0.737 January 9, 2022
a ote &
§ Mitsui Trust Bank, July 9, 2014 600 600 0.725 January 10, 2020 E June 15,2015 1,500 1,500 0.947 June 15,2022 Lump-sum Unsecured,
g Limited January 9,2015 780 780 0.498 January 9,2018 | Lump-sum Unsecured, £ June 15,2015 1,500 1,500 1.063 June 15,2023 B I
£ repayment non-guaranteed g
20 1; 9,2015 500 500 0.523 9,2019 3 - 0.613
g2 anuary. January (Note2) g September 30, 2015 1250 1.250 (Note 5) March 30, 2023
= January 9, 2015 340 340 0.544 July 9,2019 =
December 16, 2015 - 200 0.657 June 15,2022
January 9,2015 840 840 0.737 January 9, 2022 (Note 2)
December 16,2015 - 1,200 0.854 June 17, 2024
June 15,2015 1,500 1,500 0.947 June 15,2022
January 12,2016 - 1.400 0784 January 12,2024 (Note 4)
June 15,2015 1,500 1,500 1.063 June 15,2023 (Note 4)
YAE June 13,2012 6,000 6.000 1191 June 13,2019
September 30, 2015 1.250 1,250 . March 30, 2023
(Note 5) April 19,2013 400 400 0.919 April 19,2019
ober ccember 2
October 1. 2015 2:400 2:400 0.237 December 26, 2016 December 19,2013 530 530 1.080 December 19, 2020 (Note 2)
e - 2 Note 2]
December 16, 2015 200 0.657 June 15, 2022 (Note 2) January 10,2014 80 80 0938 January 10, 2020
December 16, 2015 N 1,200 0854 June 17, 2024 January 10,2014 670 670 1.079 January 10,2021
January 12,2016 - 1,400 0.784 January 12, 2024 Note 4 N
anuary anuary (Note 4) July 9,2014 700 - 0275 January 9,2016
June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 0.866 June 13,2016 (Note 4)
une une July 9,2014 300 300 0.725 January 10, 2020
June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 0.953 June 13,2017
Development Bank of Japan Inc. January 9, 2015 390 390 0.498 January 9, 2018
June 13,2012 3,000 3,000 1.063 June 13,2018
January 9, 2015 250 250 0523 January 9,2019
April 19,2013 800 800 0.919 April 19,2019 (Note 2)
January 9, 2015 170 170 0544 July 9,2019
December 19, 2013 1,060 1,060 1.080 December 19, 2020
January 9, 2015 420 420 0.737 January 9, 2022 (Note 2)
January 10,2014 160 160 0.938 January 10, 2020
December 16,2015 - 100 0.657 June 15,2022
January 10,2014 1340 1340 1.079 January 10, 2021
December 16, 2015 - 625 0754 June 15,2023
July 9,2014 1,400 - 0.275 January 9, 2016
(Note 4) December 16, 2015 - 600 0.854 June 17, 2024
July 9, 2014 600 600 0.725 January 10, 2020
January 12, 2016 - 700 0.784 January 12, 2024
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and January 9, 2015 780 780 0.498 January 9, 2018
Banking Ct t March 29,2013 2,000 2,000 0.270 March 31,2017
January 9,2015 500 500 0523 January 9,2019 Mizuho Trust & Banking
(Note 2) o '7"'3 rust & Banking August 29, 2014 1,500 1,500 0510 August 29, 2019
January 9, 2015 340 340 0.544 July 9,2019 ‘0., Lt
March 31, 2015 2,000 2,000 0.685 March 31, 2022
January 9, 2015 840 840 0.737 January 9, 2022
March 29,2013 1,500 1,500 0270 March 31,2017
June 15,2015 1,500 1,500 0.947 June 15,2022 Resona Bank, Limited.
March 31,2015 1,500 1,500 0525 March 31,2020
June 15,2015 1,500 1,500 1.063 June 15,2023 (Note 4)
0.613 March 29, 2013 1,000 1,000 0.270 March 31, 2017
September 30, 2015 1,250 1,250 o March 30, 2023 The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. (Note 4)
(Note 5) March 31,2015 1,000 1,000 0.525 March 31,2020
December 16, 2015 - 200 0.657 June 15,2022
ceember > une (Note 2) March 29, 2013 500 500 0270 March 31,2017
December 16, 2015 - 1.200 0.854 June 17,2024 The Gunma Bank, Ltd
March 31, 2015 500 500 0.525 March 31, 2020
January 12,2016 - 1,400 0.784 January 12, 2024 (Note 4)
March 29,2013 500 500 0270 March 31,2017
Shinkin Central Bank August 29,2014 1500 1,500 0510 August 29,2019
March 31, 2015 500 500 0.685 March 31, 2022
The Norinchukin Bank March 31,2015 500 500 0525 March 31,2020
Subtotal 126,500 134,750
Total 128,900 137,150

(Note 1) The average interest rate of borrowings with floating interest rates is weighted by the balance of each borrowing as at the end of the period and rounded to the nearest third
decimal place.

(Note 2) Proceeds from the borrowings are used to acquire real estate trust beneficiary interests and pay for their related expenses.

(Note 3) Long-term loans payable includes long-term borrowings to be repaid within a year.

(Note 4) Proceeds from borrowings are used to repay existing loans payable.

(Note 5) To hedge the risks arising from interest rate fluctuations, API has entered into interest rate swap agreements. Therefore, the figures reflect the effect of interest rate swaps

(fixation of interest rates).



44

(3) Investment Corporation Bonds

Balance as of

Balance as of

November May 31, Interest Maturit Repayment
Name of bonds Issuance date 30,2015 2016 rate urty paym Use of proceeds Remarks
e AT 3 date method
(In millions (In millions (%)
of yen) of yen)
. . Repayment of
The Ist Qnsecured Investment April 25, 4,000 4,000 0.370 April 25, Lump sum outstanding loans Unsecured and
Corporation Bond 2014 2019 (Note) unguaranteed
payable
. . Repayment of
The 2nd pnsecured Investment April 21, 2,000 2,000 0.297 April 21, | Lump sum outstanding loans Unsecured and
Corporation Bond 2015 2020 (Note) unguaranteed
payable
. . Repayment of
The 3rd Unsecured Investment April 21, April 21, | Lump sum - Unsecured and
Corporation Bond 2015 2,000 2,000 0.726 2025 (Note) outstanding loans unguaranteed
payable
Repayment of
The 4th Unsecured Investment Februrary 3, . 2,000 0770 Februrary 3, | Lump sum outstanding loans Unsecured and
Corporation Bond 2016 2026 (Note) unguaranteed
payable
Total 8,000 10,000

(Note)  The Investment Corporation may repurchase and cancel bonds at any time after the date of payment unless otherwise specified by the Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc.

(4) Short-Term Investment Corporation Bonds

Not applicable

(5) Subscription Rights for New Investment Units

Not applicable

6. Buying and Selling during the Period
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(1) Buying and Selling, etc., of Real Estate and Asset-Backed Securities, etc., Infrastructure Assets, etc.

and Infrastructure-Related Assets

Acquisition Disposal
Category Asset type Property name o At s ; Disposal Book value Galq (loss) on
Acquisition J Disposal amount . disposal
(In millions of yen) e (In millions of o
date date (In millions of (In millions of
(Note 1) yen)
yen) yen)
. Trust
Urban Rgta]l beneficiary Q plaza December 16, 13.350 _ _ _ _
Properties | i iorc SHINSAIBASHI 2015
Trust . L
Tokyo Ofﬁce beneficiary Shiodome Building | December 16, 20400 _ _ _ _
Properties interests (Note 2) 2015
Total 33,750 — — — —

(Note 1)  The acquisition price represents the trading value of trust beneficiary rights stipulated in each beneficiary right purchase for the assets (excluding consumption tax,

local consumption tax, and expenses such as trading commissions).

Note 2) The acquisition price for the Shiodome Building represent figures equivalent to the percentage of the Investment Corporation’s co-ownership interest (10%).
( q P g rep gures eq P g P p

(2) Buying and Selling, etc. of Other Assets

Not applicable. In addition, the Investment Corporation’s assets other than the above-mentioned real estate and
asset-backed securities are mostly comprised of direct bank deposits and bank deposits in trust.

(3) Survey of Prices, etc. of Specified Assets
1) Real Estate

Acquisition price or

Acquisition / e G disposal amount Gt vellmo el Date of
a Property name acquisition / oS’ end of period Name of appraiser g
Disposal X (In millions of yen) P appraisal
disposal (Note 1) (In millions of yen)
Qplaza December 16, 13,350 13,400 | Japan Valuers Co., Ltd. September 1,
SHINSAIBASHI 2015 2015
Acquisition Shiodome Building December 16, 20400 20,700 Morii Appraisal & September 1,
(Note 2) 2015 Investment Consulting Inc. 2015
Total — 33,750 34,100 —

(Note 1) The acquisition price represents the trading value of trust beneficiary rights stipulated in each beneficiary right purchase and sale agreement for the assets (excluding

consumption tax, local consumption tax, and expenses such as trading commissions).

(Note 2) The

ition price for the Shi

Building represent figures equivalent to the percentage of the Investment Corporation’s co-ownership interest (10%).

(Note 3) The appraisals of the above-mentioned real estate were conducted by applying “Real Estate Appraisal Standard Section 3: Appraisals Regarding Prices of Real Estate
for Securitization.”

(4) Transactions between Interested Parties and Major Unitholders

1) Transactions

Category

Purchase and sales amounts

Purchase amounts

Sales amounts

Total amount

¥33,750 million

¥— million

Details of transactions between interested parties and major unitholders

Classer LLC ¥20,400 million  (60.4%) ¥— million  (—%)
Tokyu Land Corporation ¥13,350 million  (39.6%) ¥— million (—%)
Total ¥33,750 million (100.0%) ¥— million (—%)
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2) Commissions Paid

Breakdown of transactions with interested parties and
Total amount (A) major unitholders (B)/(A)
Category
(In thousands of yen) X Amount (B) (%)
Paid to
(In thousands of yen)
Tokyu Community Corp. 114,137 373
Property management fee 305,883 Tokyu L?"d SC Management 92,093 30.1
Corporation
Tokyu Land Corporation 78,318 25.6
Building management fee 496,638 | Tokyu Community Corp. 437,368 88.1
Tokyu Community Corp. 1,357 44.7
Construction management fee 3,037 Tokyu Lgnd SC Management 921 303
Corporation
Tokyu Land Corporation 687 22.6
Other management operation 63.993 Tokyu Lgnd SC Management 5.625 3.8
expenses Corporation
Tokyu Community Corp. 20,030 11.4
Tokyu Lgnd SC Management 4438 25
Corporation
Other lease business expenses 175,811 | Tokyu Livable Staff Corporation 1,578 0.9
HANDS LAB INC. 939 0.5
Ishikatsu Exterior Inc. 934 0.5
Tokyu Land Corporation 762 0.4

(Note 1) The term “Interested parties”™ refers to interested parties of Asset Management Companies as stipulated by Article 201, Paragraph 1 of the

Investment Trust Act, Article 123 of the Enforcement Ordinances of the Act on Investment Trust and Investment Corporation of Japan and Article

26, Paragraph 1, Item 27 of the Regulations Concerning Investment Reports of Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations, issued by The

Investment Trusts Association, Japan.

(Note 2) Other than commission paid as referred to above, construction works ordered to interested parties and major unitholders are as follows:

Tokyu Community Corp.

Tokyu Land Corporation

Tokyu Homes Corporation

Tokyu Land SC Management Corporation

¥37,261 thousand
¥1,474 thousand
¥1,250 thousand
¥893 thousand

(5) Transactions between the Asset Manager in Other Businesses of the Asset Manager

No relevant matter exists under this subject as the asset manager (TLC Activia Investment Management
Inc.) does not engage in any other business such as the first- or second-type financial instruments
businesses under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act (or the securities business under the former
Securities and Exchange Act), the building lots and buildings transaction business, or the real estate joint
enterprise.
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7. Accounting Status

(1) Assets, Liabilities, Principal, and Profit and Loss

Please refer to “Il. Balance Sheets,” “IIl. Statements of Operations,” “IV. Statements of Changes in
Unitholders’ Equity,” “V. Statements of Cash Distributions” and “VII. Notes to Financial Statements.”

(2) Changes in the Calculation Method of Depreciation Expenses
Not applicable

(3) Changes in the Evaluation Method of Real Estate, etc. and Infrastructure Assets, etc.
Not applicable
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8. Other

(1) Beneficiary Certificates of Investment Trusts, etc. Set Up by the Company
Not applicable

(2) Announcements

Here is an outline of major agreements that the Board of Directors of the Investment Corporation
approved to conclude and modify for the fiscal period under review.

Date of approval Item Summary

With respect to the enforcement of the Act on the Use of
Numbers to identify a Specific Individual in the Administrative
Conclusion of the memorandum Procedure, API concluded the memorandum on the transfer

on the transfer agency agreement | agency agreement and incidental memorandums as of August 29,
2011 with Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited to add
outsourcing of administrative operations and other matters.

December 25, 2015

The Board of Directors of the Investment Corporation made a
comprehensive resolution regarding the issuance of investment
corporation bonds (total amount: ¥50 billion or less; issuance
period: June 1, 2016 to May 31, 2017); approved the
appointment of candidate companies for the entrustment of
affairs and administrative works, such as issuing agent, financial
agent, and paying agent regarding the placing of investment
corporation bonds; and entrusted the decision of other necessary

Comprehensive approval of
issuance of investment
corporation bonds and
appointment of administrators

May 25, 2016

matters to the Executive Director.

(3) Status of Companies Owing Real Estate Overseas
Not applicable

(4) Status of Real Estate Owned by Companies Owning Real Estate Overseas
Not applicable

(5) Other

For the purpose of this report, the numbers for amounts below unit and percentages are rounded to units,
unless otherwise mentioned specifically.

’i\ctivia
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Financial Statements
II. Balance Sheets

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

As of November 30, 2015
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

As of May 31, 2016

Assets
Current assets
Cash and deposits
Cash and deposits in trust
Operating accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Income taxes receivable
Consumption taxes receivable
Other
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings in trust
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings in trust, net
Structures in trust
Accumulated depreciation
Structures in trust, net
Machinery and equipment in trust
Accumulated depreciation
Machinery and equipment in trust, net
Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust
Accumulated depreciation
Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust, net
Land in trust
Construction in progress in trust
Total property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Leasehold rights in trust
Other
Total intangible assets
Investments and other assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Other
Total investments and other assets
Total non-current assets
Deferred assets
Investment corporation bond issuance costs
Total deferred assets

Total assets

As of November 30, 2015

As of May 31, 2016

Liabilities

Current liabilities

10,356,687 7,850,554 Operating accounts payable
2,985,837 4,013,423 Short-term loans payable
364,124 448,019 Current portion of long-term loans payable
198,238 353,242 Accounts payable - other
11 16 Accrued expenses
53 - Income taxes payable
- 5,083 Accrued consumption taxes
1,692 1,968 Advances received
13,906,644 12,672,309 Deposits received
Other
Total current liabilities
62,998,720 67,043,786 Non-current liabilities
(4,327,404) (5,263,878) Investment corporation bond
58,671,315 61,779,907 Long-term loans payable
541,463 565,465 Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
(69,712) (83,894) Other
471,750 481,570 Total non-current liabilities
1,231,423 1,264,865 Total liabilities
(149,904) (179,609) Net assets
1,081,519 1,085,255 Unitholders’ equity
73,944 77,138 Unitholders’ capital
(23,340) (31,583) Surplus
50,603 45,554 Unappropriated retained earnings
228,459,519 258,584,206 (undisposed loss)
4,879 4,102 Total surplus
288,739,588 321,980,596 Total unitholders’ equity
Total net assets
4,562,628 4,562,628 Total liabilities and net assets
2,167 1,706
4,564,795 4,564,334
481,518 611,931
13,944 14,791
495,463 626,723
293,799,847 327,171,654
40,096 50,969
40,096 50,969
307,746,588 339,894,933

644,184 394,577
2,400,000 2,400,000
19,000,000 26,400,000
68,571 14,969
540,277 574,049

- 702

324,818 -
192,393 203,975
2,251 5,011

2,128 0
23,174,626 29,993,285
8,000,000 10,000,000
107,500,000 108,350,000
13,511,215 14,821,932
42 51
129,011,258 133,171,984
152,185,884 163,165,269
150,770,610 171,532,813
4,790,093 5,196,849
4,790,093 5,196,849
155,560,704 176,729,663
¥ 155,560,704 * 176,729,663
307,746,588 339,894,933
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II1. Statements of Operations IV. Statements of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Previous fiscal period (From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015) (Unit: Thousands of yen)

52

Previous fiscal period

Current fiscal period

(From June 1, 2015 (From December 1, 2015 Unitholders” equity
to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016) Surplus Total
. s . B otal net assets
Operating revenue Unlthéltdtl?rs Unappropriated Total unltbolders
capita retained earnings Total surplus equity
Lease business revenue *1,*3 8,780,954 *1,*3 9,528,262 (undisposed loss)
Other lease business revenue *LY3 o 719,892 *LY3 647,599 Balance at beginning 150,770,610 4,582,505 4,582,505 155,353,116 155,353,116
) ) . of current period 7 T T T T
Gain on sales of real estate properties 2 200,380 - Changes of items
Total operating revenue 9,701,227 10,175,862 during period
Divi fi
Operating expenses SL:rV;;fsnds rom (4,582,377) (4,582,377) (4,582,377) (4,582,377)
Expenses related to rent business *1, %3 3,422,612 *1,*3 3,399,234 Profit 4.789.965 4789965 4.789.965 4.789.965
Asset management fee 703,280 747,023 Total ch £
Sotalchanges of - 207,587 207,587 207,587 207,587
Asset custody fee 8,490 9,502 items during period
Bal t end of *1
Administrative service fees 26348 25,059 aance at endo 4,790,093 4,790,093 155,560,704 155,560,704
current period 150,770,610
Directors’ compensations 3,300 3,300
Other operating expenses 77,059 64,988 Current fiscal period (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016) (Unit: Thousands of yen)
Total operating expenses 4,241,090 4,249,107 Unitholders’ equity
Operating income 5,460,137 5,926,754 Surplus
Non-operating income Unitholders’ Unappropriated Total unitholders’ Total net assets
Interest income 451 549 capital retained earnings Total surplus equity
(undisposed loss)
Interest on securities 3,488 1,055 L
> ’ Bal t b
o arance at beging 150,770,610 4,790,093 4,790,093 155,560,704 155,560,704
Reversal of distribution payable - 6,902 of current period
Interest on refund 1,138 - Chénges of 1t§ms
during the period
Total non-operating income 5,078 8,507 Issuance of new
2 2,2 2 2,2 2 2,2
. investment units 0,762,203 0,762,203 0,762,203
Non-operating expenses Dividends f
ividends from
Interest expenses 483,538 539.715 surplus (4,789,949) (4,789,949) (4,789,949) (4,789,949)
Interest expenses on investment corporation bonds 17,664 22,639 Profit 5,196,705 5,196,705 5,196,705 5,196,705
Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs 4,276 4,794 Total changes of items 20.762.203 406756 406756 21.168.959 21.168.959
Investment unit issuance expenses 62,950 49,399 dBu111ng thetpenc(l)d - *1
alance at end o
Borrowing related expenses 105,568 120,564 current period 171,532,813 5,196,849 5,196,849 176,729,663 176,729,663
Other 500 500
Total non-operating expenses 674,498 737,613
Ordinary income 4,790,716 5,197,648
Profit before income taxes 4,790,716 5,197,648
Income taxes - current 745 948
Income taxes - deferred 6 )
Total income taxes 751 943
Profit 4,789,965 5,196,705
Retained earnings brought forward 127 143
Unappropriated retained earnings (undisposed loss) 4,790,093 5,196,849
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V. Statements of Cash Distributions

Fiscal periods

Previous fiscal period
(From June 1, 2015

Current fiscal period
(From December 1, 2015

to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016)
Amount Amount
! gﬁfﬁ;g%ﬁg;ﬁﬁg?ﬂsg ¥4,790,093,192 ¥5,196,849.213
II  Distributions ¥4,789,949,488 ¥5,196,601,564
[Cash distribution per unit] ¥(8,642] ¥(8,666]
III Earnings carried forward ¥143,704 ¥247,649

Calculation method for
distributions

Based on the distribution policy
set forth in Article 35, Paragraph
1 of the Articles of Incorporation
of the Investment Corporation,
distributions shall be limited to
the amount of profit in excess of
an amount equivalent to ninety
hundredths (90/100) of
distributable profits, as stipulated
in Article 67-15, Paragraph 1 of
the Special Taxation Measures
Act. In consideration of this
policy, we will pay distributions
at the total amount of
¥4,789,949,488, which is the
amount that does not exceed the
unappropriated retained earnings
and is the greatest value among
integral multiples of 554,264,
which is the total number of
investment units issued; provided,
however, that we will not pay the
portion of amount that exceeds
the profit defined in Article 35,
Paragraph 2 of the Articles of
Incorporation of the Investment
Corporation.

Based on the distribution policy
set forth in Article 35, Paragraph
1 of the Articles of Incorporation
of the Investment Corporation,
distributions shall be limited to
the amount of profit in excess of
an amount equivalent to ninety
hundredths (90/100) of
distributable profits, as stipulated
in Article 67-15, Paragraph 1 of
the Special Taxation Measures
Act. In consideration of this
policy, we will pay distributions
at the total amount of
¥5,196,601,564, which is the
amount that does not exceed the
unappropriated retained earnings
and is the greatest value among
integral multiples of 599,654,
which is the total number of
investment units issued; provided,
however, that we will not pay the
portion of amount that exceeds
the profit defined in Article 35,
Paragraph 2 of the Articles of
Incorporation of the Investment
Corporation.

VI. Statements of Cash Flows
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Previous fiscal period
(From June 1, 2015
to November 30, 2015)

Current fiscal period
(From December 1, 2015
to May 31, 2016)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes
Depreciation
Loss on retirement of non-current assets
Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs
Interest income and interest on securities
Interest expenses
Investment unit issuance expenses
Borrowing related expenses
Decrease (increase) in operating accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in consumption taxes refund receivable
Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Decrease from sales of property, plant and equipment in trust
Increase (decrease) in operating accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in advances received
Decrease (increase) in long-term prepaid expenses
Other, net
Subtotal
Interest income received
Interest expenses paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment in trust
Repayments of tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
Proceeds from tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short-term loans payable
Decrease in short-term loans payable
Proceeds from long-term loans payable
Decrease in long-term loans payable
Proceeds from issuance of investment corporation bonds
Proceeds from issuance of investment units
Dividends paid
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

4,790,716 5,197,648
925,507 989,961
2,862 0
4276 4,794
(3,940) (1,604)
501,203 562,355
62,950 49,399
105,568 120,564
(10,190) (83,895)
359,151 (5,083)
324,818 (324,818)
107,120 (147,887)
1,611,869 -
43,719 (142,794)
34,319 35,193
(25,091) 11,581
(41,948) (43,623)
(5,807) (6,538)
8,787,107 6,215,250
3,932 1,604
(452,221) (509,393)
(1,056) (192)
8,337,761 5,707,269

(12,664,006)
(750,334)

678,164
(150)

(34,385,143)
(287,375)

1,598,092
(846)

(12,736,326)

(33,075,273)

7,398,405 3,849,536
(5,000,000) (3,850,000)
19,196,865 15,054,812

(12,000,000) (7,000,000)
- 1,984,332

- 20,655,664
(4,580,483) (4,789,235)
(24,180) (15,654)
4,990,606 25,889,457
592,041 (1,478,546)
12,750,483 13,342,524

*1 13,342,524

*] 11,863,978
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VII. Notes to Financial Statements

Notes on Assumption of Going Concern
Not applicable

Notes on Important Accounting Policies
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1. Method of (1) Property, plant and equipment (including trust assets)
depreciation of non- The straight-line method is used.
current assets The useful lives of major property, plant and equipment are listed below.
Buildings 2 to 70 years
Structures 2 to 60 years
Machinery and equipment 2 to 33 years
Tools, furniture and fixtures 2 to 15 years

(2) Intangible assets

Internal use software is amortized by the straight-line method over the expected
useful life (5 years).

(3) Long-term prepaid expenses
The straight-line method is used.

6. Other important (1) Accounting method for trust beneficiary right with real estate, etc. as trust asset
matters related to the With regard to trust beneficiary right with real estate, etc. in holding as trust
preparation of asset, all assets and liabilities as well as all revenue and expense items
financial statements associated with all trust assets are accounted for under the respective account

items of the balance sheets and statements of operations.

Of the trust assets accounted for under the respective account items, the

following items with significance are separately indicated on the balance sheets.

i)  Cash and deposits in trust

ii)  Buildings in trust; structures in trust; machinery and equipment in trust;
tools, furniture and fixtures in trust; land in trust; construction in progress
in trust; and leasehold rights in trust

iii) Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust

(2) Accounting method for consumption tax and local consumption tax

Consumption tax and local consumption tax are accounted for by the tax-

exclusion method. Consumption taxes unqualified for deduction for tax

purposes for non-current assets, etc. are included in acquisition cost for each

asset.

2. Accounting method (1) Investment unit issuance expenses
for deferred assets The full amount is recorded as expenses at the time of expenditure.
(2) Investment corporation bond issuance costs
Amortized by the straight-line method over the period until maturity.

3. Accounting for Property-related taxes

income and expenses For property tax, city planning tax, depreciable asset tax for real properties held,
the amount of tax levied corresponding to the calculation period is recorded as
expenses related to rent business.
The settlement money for property tax that is paid to the transferor for
acquisition of real properties (so-called “amount equivalent to property tax”) is
not recorded as expenses related to rent business but included in the acquisition
costs for the related properties. Taxes on property, plant and equipment
capitalized as part of the acquisition cost of properties amounted to ¥3,955

thousand.
4. Method of hedge (1) Method of hedge accounting
accounting For interest rate swaps, special treatment is applied since the swaps satisfy the

requirements for special treatment.
(2) Hedging instruments and hedged items
Hedging instruments: Interest rate swaps transactions
Hedged items: Long-term loans payable
(3) Hedging policy
Based on the management policy of financial market risks, the Investment

Corporation makes interest rate swaps for the purpose to hedge risks set forth in
the Articles of Incorporation of the Investment Corporation.

(4) Method of assessing hedge effectiveness

The Investment Corporation assesses hedge effectiveness by ensuring the
fulfillment of the requirements of special treatment.

5. Scope of cash (cash Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in trust, demand deposits,
and cash equivalents) |deposits in trust, and highly liquid short-term investments that are readily
in the statements of convertible, bear little risk in price fluctuations, and mature within three months of
cash flows the date of acquisition.

Notes to Balance Sheets
1. Commitment Line Contracts

The Investment Corporation has the commitment line contracts with four of the banks.

As of November 30, 2015 As of May 31, 2016
Total amount specified in the ¥16,000,000 thousand ¥16,000,000 thousand
commitment line contracts
Loan balance - -
Net balance ¥16,000,000 thousand ¥16,000,000 thousand

*2. Minimum Net Assets Stipulated in Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment
Corporations

As of November 30, 2015 As of May 31, 2016

¥50,000 thousand ¥50,000 thousand
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Notes to Statements of Operations *2. Breakdown of Gain (Loss) on Sales of Real Estate Properties

*1. Breakdown of Income from Real Estate Leasing Business Previous fiscal period (From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Previous fiscal period Current fiscal period icot Kongo
F J 1,2015 F D ber 1, 2015 .
(From June (From December Income from sales of real estate properties 1,880,000
to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016)
. - Costs of sales of real estate properties 1,611,869
Real estate leasing business
revenues Other costs of sales 67,750
Lease business revenue Gain on sales of real estate properties 200,380
Rent 7,995,439 8,659,816
Common service fees 551,704 622,892 Current fiscal period (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016)
Not applicable
Parking lot fees 167,202 177,735
Other rent revenue 66,608 8,780,954 67,818 9,528,262 *3. Transactions with Major Unitholders
Other lease business revenue 719,892 647,599 (Unit: Thousands of yen)
Total real estate leasing business 0.500.847 10.175.862 Previous fiscal period Current fiscal period
revenues e e (From June 1, 2015 (From December 1, 2015
Real estate leasing business to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016)
expenses Operating transactions
Expenses related to rent business Lease business revenue 1,935,495 1,937,035
Management operation expenses 822,028 869,553 Other lease business revenue 188,396 153,328
Utilities expenses 658,114 629,540 Expenses related to rent business 77,096 79,767
Tax and public dues 643,543 649,062
Notes to Statements of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity
Insurance 6,793 7,136 *]. Total number of authorized investment units and total number of investment units issued are as follows:
Repair and maint
e:é):;rsjsn franienance 202,545 78,425 Previous fiscal period Current fiscal period
o (From June 1, 2015 (From December 1, 2015
Depreciation 925,248 989,702 to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016)
Loss on retirement of non- 2.862 0 Total number of authorized investment units 4,000,000 units 4,000,000 units
current assets ’
Total number of investment units issued 554,264 units 599,654 units
Other expenses related to rent 161,476 3,422,612 175,811 3,399,234
business
Total real estate leasing business 3,422,612 3.399.234
expenses
Income from real estate leasing 6.078.235 6.776.628

business (A — B)
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Notes to Statements of Cash Flows
*1. Reconciliation between Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period and the Amount on the Balance Sheets

Previous fiscal period Current fiscal period
(From June 1, 2015 (From December 1, 2015
to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016)
Cash and deposits ¥10,356,687 thousand ¥7,850,554 thousand
Cash and deposits in trust ¥2,985,837 thousand ¥4,013,423 thousand

Cash and cash equivalents ¥13,342,524 thousand ¥11,863,978 thousand

Notes to Lease Rental Revenues

The Investment Corporation leases properties on which rental revenues are earned. As of November 30, 2015 and
May 31, 2016, future lease revenues under non-cancelable operating leases are summarized as follows:

As of November 30, 2015 As of May 31, 2016
Due within one year ¥9,525,080 thousand ¥11,028,815 thousand
Due after one year ¥47,113,916 thousand ¥49,474,207 thousand
Total ¥56,638,996 thousand ¥60,503,022 thousand

’i\ctivia

Notes on Financial Instruments
1. Matters Regarding Financial Instruments

(1) Policy for Financial Instruments

The Investment Corporation raises funds by borrowing, issuing investment corporation bonds, or issuing
investment units for the purpose of acquiring real estate-related assets and repaying interest-bearing debt.

When raising funds, the Investment Corporation aims to sustain stable fund-raising capability for a long time at
low cost by enhancing its capital adequacy and maintaining conservative interest-bearing debt, looking for
attributes such as extended borrowing periods for interest-bearing debt, fixed interest rates, and diversified due
dates to ensure financial stability and avoid the risk of interest-rate hikes.

The Investment Corporation also invests temporary excess funds in deposits in general, taking safety and
liquidity, etc. into account and considering the interest-rate environment and its cash management.

The Investment Corporation may carry out derivatives transactions for the purpose of hedging the interest-rate
risk of borrowings and other risks, but does not engage in speculative transactions.

(2) Content and Risks of Financial Instruments and Risk Management System

As the excess funds of the Investment Corporation are invested in deposits, they are exposed to credit risks such
as the insolvency of the financial institutions in which the excess funds are deposited. However, the Investment
Corporation deposits excess funds carefully by limiting the period of deposits to the short term, taking safety and
liquidity, etc. into account and considering the financial environment and its cash management.

Borrowings and investment corporation bond are received mainly for the purpose of acquiring real estate and
refinancing of existing borrowings. Tenant leasehold and security deposits are deposits provided by tenants.
Borrowings, investment corporation bond, tenant leasehold and security deposits are exposed to liquidity risks at
the time of repayments. However, these risks are managed through management of liquidity in hand by preparing
a monthly funding plan, efforts to reduce liquidity risk on loans payable and investment corporation bond by
diversifying repayment periods, etc., and other means.

Floating-rate loans payable are also exposed to the risk of fluctuations in interest-rates. However, these risks are
managed through derivative transactions (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments in certain floating-rate
loans payable.

(3) Supplemental Remarks on the Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is based on market prices or reasonably calculated value if it has no
market price. As certain assumptions are made in calculating these values, if different assumptions, etc. are used,
these values could vary.

2. Matters Regarding Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of November 30, 2015, are as shown
below. Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine are not included
in this table (please refer to (Note 2)).

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and deposits 10,356,687 10,356,687 -
(2) Cash and deposits in trust 2,985,837 2,985,837 -
Total assets 13,342,524 13,342,524 -

(1) Short-term loans payable 2,400,000 2,400,000 -
(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable 19,000,000 19,031,316 31,316
(3) Investment corporation bonds 8,000,000 8,059,778 59,778
(4) Long-term loans payable 107,500,000 108,640,246 1,140,246
Total liabilities 136,900,000 138,131,341 1,231,341

Derivative transactions - - -
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Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of May 31, 2016, are as shown below.
Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine are not included in this
table (please refer to (Note 2)).

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and deposits 7,850,554 7,850,554 —
(2) Cash and deposits in trust 4,013,423 4,013,423 —
Total assets 11,863,978 11,863,978 —

(1) Short-term loans payable 2,400,000 2,400,000 —
(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable 26,400,000 26,406,389 6,389
(3) Investment corporation bonds 10,000,000 10,233,115 233,115
(4) Long-term loans payable 108,350,000 110,699,489 2,349,489
Total liabilities 147,150,000 149,738,995 2,588,995

Derivative transactions — — —

(Note 1) Measurement Methods for Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Assets

(1) Cash and deposits, (2) Cash and deposits in trust
The book value is used as the fair value of these assets, given that the fair value is almost the same as the book value, as it is
settled in a short time.

Liabilities

(1) Short-term loans payable
The book value is used as the fair value of these liabilities, given that the fair value is almost the same as the book value, as
it is settled in a short time.

(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable, (4) Long-term loans payable
These fair values are determined by discounting the total of principal and interest at the rate assumed when a new loan is
made corresponding to the remaining period. The book value is used as the fair value of those loans payable with floating
interest rates, given that the fair value is almost the same as the book value, as their interest rates are reviewed on a short-
term interval to reflect market interest rates (however, for long-term loans payable with floating interest rates to which
special treatment for interest rate swaps is applied, the fair value is the value calculated by discounting the sum of principal
and interest, which are treated in combination with the said interest rate swap, at a reasonable rate estimated for a similar
new loan).

(3) Investment corporation bonds
The fair value is determined by discounting the total of principal and interest at a rate taking into account the remaining
period and credit risk of the said investment corporation bonds.

Derivative transactions

Please refer to “Notes on Derivative Transactions.”

(Note 2) Carrying Amounts of Financial Instruments Where Fair Value Is Considered to Be Extremely Difficult to Determine

(Unit: Thousands of yen)
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(Note 3) Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (November 30, 2015)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year [ 1-2 years 2-3 years 3—4 years 4-5 years Over 5 years
Deposits 10,356,687 - — - — _
Deposits in trust 2,985,837 - - - - -
Total 13,342,524 - - - — _

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (May 31, 2016)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within [ year [ 1-2 years 2-3 years 3—4 years 4-5 years Over 5 years
Deposits 7,850,554 - - - - _
Deposits in trust 4,013,423 - - - — _
Total 11,863,978 - — - — _

(November 30, 2015)

(Note 4) Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable and Investment Corporation Bonds after the Account Closing Date

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years 3—4 years 4-5 years Over 5 years
Short-term loans payable 2,400,000 - - - - -
Investment corporation bonds - - - 4,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Long-term loans payable 19,000,000  26,400,000| 20,900,000 17,200,000 7,300,000 35,700,000
Total 21,400,000  26,400,000| 20,900,000 21,200,000 9,300,000 37,700,000

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable and Investment Corporation Bonds after the Account Closing Date

(May 31, 2016)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category As of November 30, 2015 As of May 31, 2016

Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust *1 13,511,215 14,821,932

*1 As there are no market prices for tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust from tenants for leasehold properties and
the actual period of deposit from move-in of the tenant to move-out is difficult to determine, it is extremely difficult to
reasonably estimate the cash flow. Therefore, the fair value for tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust is not
subject to the disclosure of fair value.

Within [ year | 1-2 years 2-3 years 3—4 years 4-5 years Over 5 years

Short-term loans payable 2,400,000 — — — — —
Investment corporation bonds — — 4,000,000 2,000,000 — 4,000,000
Long-term loans payable 26,400,000 | 20,900,000 18,500,000 18,000,000 12,000,000 [ 38,950,000
Total 28,800,000 ( 20,900,000 22,500,000 20,000,000 12,000,000 [ 42,950,000
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Notes on Derivative Transactions

Derivative transaction to which hedge accounting is not applied

(As of November 30, 2015)

Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2016)
Not applicable

Derivative transaction to which hedge accounting is applied

(As of November 30, 2015)

The following table shows contract amount or principal amount, etc. set forth in the contract as of the account
closing date by method of hedge accounting.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

for interest rate
swaps

Receive floating
Pay fixed

loans payable

. Type of derivative | Major hedged . Iculati th
Hedge accounting e . I g Amount of contract Fair value | Calculation me od
transactions items for fair value
IPortion due after|
one year
ial treat; t Int t rat
Special treatmen nterest rate swaps Long-term

10,000,000 | 10,000,000

* Interest rate swap transactions to which special treatment is applied are accounted for as an integral part of long-term
loans payable, a hedged item. Thus, their fair values are included in the fair value of long-term loans payable. (Please
refer to “(Note 1) Liabilities (4), 2. Matters Regarding Fair Values of Financial Instruments, Notes on Financial

Instruments.”)

(As of May 31, 2016)

The following table shows contract amount or principal amount, etc. set forth in the contract as of the account
closing date by method of hedge accounting.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

for interest rate
swaps

Receive floating
Pay fixed

loans payable

10,000,000 | 10,000,000

. Type of derivative | Major hedged . Calculation method
Hedge accounting e . e & Amount of contract Fair value at
transactions items for fair value
IPortion due after|
one year
S ial treat; t Int t rate
pecial treatmen nterest rate swaps Long-term

* Interest rate swap transactions to which special treatment is applied are accounted for as an integral part of long-term
loans payable, a hedged item. Thus, their fair values are included in the fair value of long-term loans payable. (Please
refer to “(Note 1) Liabilities (4), 2. Matters Regarding Fair Values of Financial Instruments, Notes on Financial

Instruments.”)

’i\ctivia

Notes on Deferred Tax Accounting
1. Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities

As of November 30, 2015 As of May 31, 2016
Deferred tax assets
o (1 purposes ¥11 thousand ¥16 thousand
Total deferred tax assets ¥11 thousand ¥16 thousand
Net deferred tax assets ¥11 thousand ¥16 thousand

2. Reconciliation of Significant Difference between Effective Statutory Tax Rate and Effective Income Tax
Rate after Application of Deferred Tax Accounting

As of November 30, 2015 As of May 31, 2016
Effective statutory tax rate 32.31% 32.31%
(Adjustments)
Distributions paid included in deductibles (32.30)% (32.30)%
Other 0.01% 0.01%
Effective income tax rate after application of 0.02% 0.02%

tax effect accounting

3. Tax Rate Change in Line with Revision to Income Taxes

The “Act for Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 15 of 2016) and the “Act for Partial
Revision, etc. of the Local Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 13 of 2016) were promulgated on March 31, 2016, and
the tax rates for income taxes were revised from the fiscal period beginning on or after April 1, 2016. In
conjunction with this, the effective statutory tax rate used to calculate deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities for the current fiscal period was changed to 31.74% from the previous tax rate of 32.31%. The
impact of this change is immaterial.
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Notes on Transactions with Related Parties

1. Parent Company and Major Corporate Unitholders

Previous fiscal period (From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015)

Capital 5 Relationship
stock or '0 st Transaction Ending
5 investment | Business or q X ) q amount g balance
Attribute Name Address in capital | occupation Or\:JgIE:js Interlocking Business Transaction (Thousands Account title (Thousands
(Milliol;s of o3 dg) officers, etc. | relationship of yen) of yen)
yen
Receipt of tenant
leaschold and 51,790
security deposits Tenant leaschold
%)1-2 . I_\t/lhajlodr Repayments of d and _stec_ur:ty . 2,469,938
a P ogenzaka al estz unitholder, ‘ftenant leasehold CpOSILs 1n trus
unli\:llié(l’éer ngy:r;‘t?gg 1-chome, 57,551 Slfgilnzztsdte 10.35% None and rent and |and security 4,303,341
P Shibuya-ku, management | deposits
Tokyo of properties o -
Rental revenues. perating ?Efoums 83,504
g > 2,123,891 receivable
’ Advances received 57,998
Current fiscal period (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016
B
Capital D, Relationship
stock or : it Transaction Ending
Attribute Name Address investment | Business or rights . i i Transaction Gy Account title balance
in capital | occupation owi in Interlocking Business (Thousands (Thousands
(Milli()l;s of (owne (%) officers, etc. | relationship of yen) of yen)
yen
Purchase of
beneficiary rights _ _
of real estate in 13,350,000
trust
Acceptance of
tenant leasehold
and security 451,675
212 Major  [deposits
. Dogenzaka unitholder, [Receipt of T leaschold
Major  [Tokyu Land Real estate eceipt of tenant enant leaseho
unithélder Corgoration I-chome, 57,551 |y siness 10.32%|  None and rent and {jeasehold and 67,440  and security 2,494,102
%hi(buya-ku, mfanagen:[@nt security deposits deposits in trust
okyo of properties
Y prop Repayments of
tenant leasehold
and security 43,276
deposits
Operating accounts
Rtemal revenues, 2,000,363 receivable 77,034
etc.
Advances received 60,594
(Note 1)  Of the amounts above, the transaction amount does not include consumption taxes, and the ending balance includes consumption taxes.

(Note 2)  The transaction terms are based on current market practices.

2. Affiliates, etc.

Previous fiscal period (From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015)

Not applicable

Current fiscal period (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016)

Not applicable
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3. Sister companies, etc.
Previous fiscal period (From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015)
Capital P Relationship
stock or of votini Transaction Ending
Attrib N: Add investment | Business or ioh 2 ) ) T q amount A it balance
ttribute ame ress in capital | occupation rights | Interlocking Business ransaction (sl ccount title (sl
(Millior)ls of (‘;‘mc% officers, etc. | relationship of yen) of yen)
yen
Receipt of tenant
leasehold and 142,051
security deposits Tenant leasehold
2-2 Repayments of and security 4,927,191
Subsidiary ggkyu Land ogenzaka Real estate Subsidiary tcn‘;z leasehold deposits in trust
of major Management 1-chome, 100 |management - None of major |and security 98,820
unitholder geim Shibuya-ku, business unitholder |4, its
Corporation Tokyo eposits
Operating accounts
Rtemal revenues, 3.524.840 receivable 131,999
etc. e
Advances received 382
Operations
1-1 Minami- related to
L TLC Activia management
Subsidiary Investment Aoyama of the ,One Asset Payment of fees Other accrued
of major M 1-chome, 300 —| interlocking for asset 795,854 276,326
. anagement |y - Investment N manager expenses
unitholder Ine Minato-ku, Corporation’s officer management
Tokyo portfolio
assets
Current fiscal period (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016)
Capital P Relationship
stock or otz Transaction Ending
. investment | Business or ] . . q amount q balance
Attribute Name Address in capital | occupation Ol;:,g;;;s Interlocking Business Transaction (Thousands Account title (Thousands
(Millim;s of (owne dg) officers, etc. | relation of yen) of yen)
yen
Purchase of
beneficiary rights 20.400.000 _ _
Subsidi 4N’L bashi Subsidi of real estate in M
ubsidiary ihonbashi ubsidiary |yst
of major [Classer LLC [1-chome, Ej:i;eesstsate - None of major
unitholder Chuo-ku, unitholder [Acceptance of
Tokyo tenant leasehold 731.843 _ _
and security ’
deposits
Delivery of tenant
leasehold and 451,675
security deposits
Receipt of tenant §
leasehold and 477,316 Tenant ledsghold
220 Tokyu Land 22 L security deposits and security 5,388,994
Subsidiary SC Dogenzaka Real estate Subsidiary |- - deposits in trust
of major Management 1-chome, 100|management - None of major |Repayments of
unitholder Cor oﬁation Shibuya-ku, business unitholder [tenant leasehold 15.513
P Tokyo and security >
deposits
Operating accounts
R[cmal revenues, 3745.187 receivable 137,603
etc. ’ ’
Advances received 1,980
Operations
163 related to
. TLC Activia |-, management .
Sy IInvestment _[Pogenzaks 300[0f the L intertoncing | Asset [pamentoffees 915,773 Other accrued 306,870
' maj Management g - Investment N g manager o i expenses ?
unitholder Inc Shibuya-ku, Corporation’s officer management
Tokyo portfolio
assets

(Note 1) The amount of Payment of fees for asset management above is in accordance with the terms set forth in the Articles of Incorporation of the Investment Corporation.
(Note 2)  Of the amounts above, the transaction amount does not include consumption taxes, and the ending balance includes consumption taxes.

(Note 3)  The transaction terms are based on current market practices.

4.

Directors and major individual unitholders

Previous fiscal period (From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015)

Not applicable

Current fiscal period (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016)

Not applicable
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Notes on Investment and Rental Properties

The Investment Corporation holds Urban Retail and Tokyo Office properties and other properties in Tokyo and
other regions for rental revenue. The carrying amounts on the balance sheets, changes during the fiscal period,
and fair values of investment and rental properties are as follows.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Previous fiscal period Current fiscal period
Use (From June 1, 2015 (From December 1, 2015
to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016)
Carrying amount on the balance sheets
Balance at beginning of period 129,968,262 129,841,119
Urban
Retail Changes during period (127,142) 13,144,133
Properties
Balance at end of period 129,841,119 142,985,252
Fair value at end of period 152,755,000 170,085,000
Carrying amount on the balance sheets
Balance at beginning of period 97,224,657 109,126,813
Tokyo
Office Changes during period 11,902,155 20,265,716
Properties
Balance at end of period 109,126,813 129,392,529
Fair value at end of period 118,730,000 141,970,000
Carrying amount on the balance sheets
Balance at beginning of period 56,119,072 54,335,670
Other . .
Properties Changes during period (1,783,402) (169,454)
Balance at end of period 54,335,670 54,166,215
Fair value at end of period 60,870,000 61,660,000
Carrying amount on the balance sheets
Balance at beginning of period 283,311,992 293,303,602
Total Changes during period 9,991,610 33,240,395
Balance at end of period 293,303,602 326,543,997
Fair value at end of period 332,355,000 373,715,000

(Note 1) The carrying amount on the balance sheets is the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation.

(Note 2) The main reason for the increase in the current fiscal period is the acquisition of two properties (Q plaza
SHINSAIBASHI and Shiodome Building (additional acquisition of 10% co-ownership interest)) worth ¥33,943,100
thousand. The decrease is mainly due to the provision of depreciation worth ¥989,702 thousand.

(Note 3) The fair value at end of period is the appraisal value provided by an independent real estate appraiser.
The income/loss concerning investment and rental properties is indicated under “Notes to Statements of
Operations.”

Segment Information
Segment Information for the fiscal periods ended November 30, 2015 and May 31, 2016 is as follows:

L.

2.

3.

Operating Segment Information
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Disclosure is omitted as the Investment Corporation is comprised of a single reportable segment engaged in the

property rental business.

Enterprise-wide Disclosures

(1) Information about Products and Services

Disclosure is not required as revenues from external customers for the single segment is in excess of 90% of total

revenues.

(2) Information about Geographic Areas

Revenues from Overseas Customers:

Disclosure is not required as revenues from external customers attributed to Japan are in excess of 90% of total

revenues.

Property, plant and equipment:

Disclosure is not required as Property, plant and equipment located in Japan are in excess of 90% of total

Property, plant and equipment.

Information about Major Customers

Previous fiscal period (From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Name of Customer Revenues Related Segment
Tokyu Land SC Management Corporation 3,524,840 Property rental business
Tokyu Community Corporation 2,975,322 Property rental business
Tokyu Land Corporation 2,123,891 Property rental business

Current fiscal period (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Name of Customer Revenues Related Segment
Tokyu Land SC Management Corporation 3,745,187 Property rental business
Tokyu Community Corporation 3,107,742 Property rental business
Tokyu Land Corporation 2,090,363 Property rental business
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Per Unit Information VIIL. Schedule of Financial Statements
Previous fiscal period Current fiscal period Securities
(From June 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015) (From December 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016) 1. Shares
Net assets per unit ¥280,661 ¥294,719 Not applicable
Basic earnings per unit ¥8,642 ¥8,722
(Note 1) Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing profit by the day-weighted average number of investment units for the 2. Securities Other Than Shares

period (previous fiscal period 554,264 units and current fiscal period 595,758 units).
Diluted earnings per unit is not stated, as there is no potential investment unit.

Not applicable

(Note 2) The basis for calculating basic earnings per unit is as follows:

Derivative Transactions

Previous fiscal period Current fiscal period (Unit: Thousands of yen)
(From June 1, 2015 (From December 1, 2015 Amount of contract (Note 1)
. . . . Fair value
to November 30, 2015) to May 31, 2016) Classification Type of derivative transactions Reiton Gue (Note 2)
Profit (Thousands of yen) 4,789,965 5,196,705 after one year
. Interest rate swaps
Amount not attributable to common B _ Over-the-counter Receive floatine P P fixed 10,000,000 10,000,000 -
unitholders (Thousands of yen) ccetve toating Fay Hxe
Profit attributable to common 4.789.965 5.196.705 Total 10,000,000 10,000,000 -
investment units (Thousands of yen) T T (Note 1) The amounts of contract do not represent the market risk exposure associated with the derivative instruments.
Average number of investment units (Note 2) The interest rate swaps wh'ich qualify fpr hedge qccounting ar}d meet specific criteria are not measpred at fair value in
for the period (Units) 554,264 595,758 the balance sheets and the interest received or paid under the interest rate swap contracts is recognized on an accrual
basis.
Significant Subsequent Events Property and Equipment
Not applicable The following tables show the summary of movement in property and equipment.
Omission of Disclosure (Unit: Thousands of yen)
As .the .need.for (.iisclosing notes on securities, .retirement.beneﬁts, eq.uity in earnings of. afﬁli;}tes, qnd asset retirement Bgimting nerease — Ending Accumulated | Depreciation Netlg?ztelr;y,
obligations in this financial report is not material or applicable, the disclosure of these items is omitted. balance Balance depreciation | for the period e]zquipment
B“‘I‘z;‘ii‘f)tmt 62,998,720 4,045,960 895| 67,043,786| 5263878 937,369| 61,779,907
Structures in trust 541,463 24,001 - 565,465 83,894 14,181 481,570
Machinery and
equipment in 1,231,423 33,441 - 1,264,865 179,609 29,705 1,085,255
trust
Tangible | Tools, furniture
Assets and fixtures in 73,944 3,193 - 77,138 31,583 8,243 45,554
trust
La(';\‘]’o‘t: t]';‘“ 228,459,519 | 30,124,687 | 258,584,206 - —| 258,584,206
Construction in
. 4,879 3,048 3,824 4,102 - - 4,102
progress in trust
Subtotal 293,309,951 34,234,332 4,720 | 327,539,564 5,558,967 989,500 321,980,596
Leasf:‘:iﬂsrl‘ghts 4,562,628 - —| 4,562,628 - | 4,562,628
Intangible
Assets Other (Note 2) 4,610 - - 4,610 2,904 461 1,706
Subtotal 4,567,239 - - 4,567,239 2,904 461 4,564,334
Total 297,877,190 34,234,332 4,720 332,106,803 5,561,871 989,961 | 326,544,931

(Note 1) The main reason for the increase in the fiscal period ended May 31, 2016 is the acquisition of 2 properties (Shiodome
Building and Q plaza SHINSAIBASHI).

(Note 2) “Other” is software (non-real estate asset).
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Other Specified Assets
Not applicable

Investment Corporation Bonds

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Loans Payable

The following tables show the details of loans payable.
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Unit: Thousands of yen)

Issue | Beginning Ending Interest | Redemption Use of
Lt Date balance Decieas balance Rate Date funds e
1st unsecured bonds Partial
(with pari passu conditions . . repayment
among specified April 25, |4 600,000 | 4000000| 0370%| AR5 Tofe Unsecured,
. . 2014 2019 non-guaranteed
investment corporation long-term
bonds) borrowings
2nd unsecured bonds Partial
(with pari passu conditions . . repayment
among specified APl 2L | 600,000 ~| 2,000,000| 0.2070| April2l, of the Unsecured,
. . 2015 2020 non-guaranteed
investment corporation long-term
bonds) borrowings
3rd unsecured bonds Partial
(with pari passu conditions . . repayment
among specified April 21 |5 600,000 | 2.000000| 0.726%| April2l. of the Unsecured,
. . 2015 2025 non-guaranteed
investment corporation long-term
bonds) borrowings
4th unsecured bonds Partial
(with pari passu conditions repayment
. February o, | February 3, Unsecured,
) among speCIﬁedA 3,2016 . —[ 2,000,000( 0.770% 2026 of the non-guaranteed
investment corporation long-term
bonds) borrowings
Total - 8,000,000 —110,000,000 - - - -
(Note)  Annual redemptions of investment corporation bonds scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were as
follows:
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 34 years 4-5 years
Unsecured bonds
(with pari passu conditions among - - 4,000,000 2,000,000 -
specified investment corporation bonds)

Category o . Average .
Lb ! Increase Decrease 11)3 ridmg interest rate M':aitutmy L;se;f Remarks
Lt alance alance (Note 1) ate unds
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o May 31, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited B 450,000 450,000 -| 0.23627% 2016 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o May 31, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation B 450,000 450,000 -| 0.23627% 2016 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. | 450000 450,000 | 02s627% | MA3L | (Noren) | Unseoured,
2016 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- o May 31, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. S| 4500000 450,000 - | 025627% 2016 (Note2) | on-guaranteed
Sumnom_o Mitsui Banking B 225,000 225,000 | 025627% May 31, (Note 2) Unsecured,
<h Corporation 2016 non-guaranteed
ort-term
loans Development Bank of Japan _ 225,000 225,000 _| 0.25627% May 31, (Note 2) Unsecured,
payable | Inc. 2016 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited - 400,000 400,000 -
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
. . - 400,000 400,000 - .
Banking Corporation 0.39864% May 31, (Note 2) Unsecured,
2016 non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 400,000 400,000 -
The Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. - 400,000 400,000 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o June 30, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 | 0.23456% 2016 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Total 2,400,000 3,850,000 3,850,000 2,400,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o January 9, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 —1 0.27494% 2016 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o January 9, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 -| 0.27494% 2016 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,400,000 ~| 1,400,000 | 0274049 | Temwary 9. (oo 4y | Unsecured,
2016 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ o January 9, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,400,000 1,400,000 0.27494% 2016 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 700,000 - 700,000 | 0.27494% January 9, (Note 4) Unsecured,
Corporation ’ ’ . 2016 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 700,000 7 700,000 | 0.27494% January 9, (Note 4) Unsecured,
Inc. 2016 non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Long-term Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 0.86572% June 13, (Note 2) Unsecured,
loans : ° 2016 non-guaranteed
payable | Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
(Note 3)
The Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 - - 3:000.000
Sumnom.O Mitsui Banking 6,000,000 B B 6,000,000 | 0.26456% December 13, (Note 4) Unsecured,
Corporation 2016 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o December 26, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 [ 0.23656% 2016 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Trust & Banking
CoLTD. 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000 026956 March 31, Unsecured,
: % 2017 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 g
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 — - 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 500,000 - - 500,000
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Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category . . Average .
Lb | Increase Decrease l];: l}dmg interest rate Mztvimy Iste dOf Remarks
s alance alance (Note 1) ate unds
The Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 B 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 June 13, Unsecured,
> 0.95315% (Note 2)
—— 2017 non-guaranteed
MllSLEbIShl UFJ Tr‘usl and 3,000,000 _ 3,000,000
Banking Corporation
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust January 9, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 780,000 - 780,000 | 0.49815% 2018 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o January 9, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 780,000 B 780,000 | 049815% 2018 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 780,000 - 780,000 | 0.49815% | MY O | oo Unsecured,
2018 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ o January 9, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 780,000 780,000) - 0.49815% 2018 Note2) | on-guaranteed
S‘umltom.u Mitsui Banking 390,000 _ 390,000 | 0.49815% January 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation 2018 non-guaranteed
9
Development Bank of Japan 390,000 _ 390,000 | 0.49815% January 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. 2018 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 0.68315% March 31, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 (Note 5) 2018 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
June 13 Unsecured,
itsubishi St 2 1.06309% ’ (Note 2) o
i\g/h:r'blb}g UFJ Ttr_ust and 3,000,000 _ 3,000,000 2018 non-guaranteed
Long-term | Banking Corporation
loans
The Bank of Tokyo-
payable | Nk UF), Lid 3,000,000 -| 3,000,000
(Note 3) M
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o January 9, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 500,000 - 500,000 | 0.52304% 2019 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ o January 9, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 500,000 300,000) 0.52304% 2019 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
. January 9, Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - 500,000 [ 0.52304% (Note 2)
2019 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- - o January 9, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 500,000 500,000 | 0.52304% 2019 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Sumltomg Mitsui Banking 250,000 B 250,000 | 0.52304% January 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation 2019 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 250,000 _ 250000 | 0.52304% January 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. 2019 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o April 19, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 800,000 - 800,000 | 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and - o April 19, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 800,000 800,000 1 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 800,000 - 800,000 | 0.91941% April 19, (Note 2) Unsecured,
2019 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- 7 o April 19, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 800,000 800,000) 0.91941% 2019 (Note2) | on-guaranteed
Sumltom_o Mitsui Banking 400,000 B 400,000 | 0.91941% April 19, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation 2019 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 400,000 B 400,000 | 0.91941% April 19, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. 2019 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 6,000,000 _ 6,000,000 | 1.19051% June 13, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. 2019 non-guaranteed
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Category . . Average .
Lb 1 Increase Decrease :‘ l}dmg interest rate Mztutnty Ifjsedof Remarks
Ll alance alance (Note 1) ate unds
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ o July 9, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 340,000 340,000 | 0.54352% 2019 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ o July 9, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 340,000 340,000 | 0.54352% 2019 (Note2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 340,000 - 340,000 | 0.54352% J;‘(')yl 3 J (Note 2) Unsecured,
non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- o July 9, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 340,000 - 340,000 0.54352% 2019 (Note 2) | - guaranteed
Sumltomp Mitsui Banking 170,000 - 170,000 | 0.54352% July 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation 2019 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 170,000 - 170,000 | 0.54352% July 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. 2019 non-guaranteed
Mizuho Trust & Banking
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Co.,LTD. 0.51000% Augg?lgz‘), (Note 4) Unsecured,
non-guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ Y January 10, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 160,000 160,000 | 0.93846% 2020 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and - Y January 10, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 160,000 160,000 1 0.93846% 2020 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 160,000 - 160,000 | 0.93846% | January 10, |\ o) | Unsecured,
2020 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- - o January 10, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 160,000 160,000 | 0.93846% 2020 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 80.000 _ 80.000 | 0.93846% January 10, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation ? ’ : 2020 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 80,000 - 80,000 | 0.93846% January 10, (Note 2) Unsecured,
L . Inc. 2020 non-guaranteed
ong-term
loans Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Y January 10, Unsecured,
payable Bank, Limited 600,000 - 600,000 | 0.72546% 2020 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
(Note 3)
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o January 10, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 600,000 B 600,000 1 0.72546% 2020 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 600,000 | 600,000 0.72546% | YEmuary 10, | oo 4y | Unsecured,
2020 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ o January 10, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 600,000 600,000 | 0.72546% 2020 Noted) | on-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 300,000 _ 300.000 | 0.72546% January 10, (Note 4) Unsecured,
Corporation ’ ’ ! 2020 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 300,000 _ 300,000 | 0.72546% January 10, (Note 4) Unsecured,
Inc. 2020 non-guaranteed
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 March 31, Unsecured,
0.52500% 2020 (Note 4) teed
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - 500,000 non-guarantee
The Norinchukin Bank 500,000 - 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o December 19, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 1,060,000 - 1,060,000 | 1.07980% 2020 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o December 19, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 1,060,000 - 1,060,000 | - 1.07980% 2020 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,060,000 | 1,060,000 1.07980% | Pecemberio. ) Unsecured,
2020 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- o December 19, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,060,000 B 1,060,000 1 1.07980% 2020 (Note2) non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking o December 19, Unsecured,
Corporation 330,000 B 330,000\ 1.07980% 2020 (Note2) non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 530,000 B 530,000 | 1.07980% December 19, (Note 2) Unsecured,

Inc.

2020

non-guaranteed
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Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category - . Average .
ngll nning Increase Decrease ll)E nldmg interest rate Mzntmy l;sedof Remarks
s alance alance (Note 1) ate unds
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ _ o January 10, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 1,340,000 1,340,000 | 1.07856% 2021 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ o January 10, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 1,340,000 1,340,000 | 1.07856% 2021 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,340,000 - S| 1340000 | 1.07856% | TAmary 10, o9y | Unsecured,
2021 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- o January 10, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,340,000 - - 1,340,000 | 1.07856% 2021 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 670.000 _ - 670.000 | 1.07856% January 10, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation ? ’ . 2021 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 670.000 - _ 670.000 | 1.07856% January 10, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Tnc. ’ i . 2021 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o January 9, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 840,000 B B 840,000 0.73690% 2022 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o January 9, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 840,000 - - 840,000) - 0.73690% 2022 (Note2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 840,000 - - §40,000 | 0.73690% | TAAYO. | (yoreq) | Unseeured,
2022 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ o January 9, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 840,000 840,000) - 0.73690% 2022 Note2) | on-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 420,000 _ -~ 420000 | 0.73690% January 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation ? ’ : 2022 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan 420,000 _ _ 420000 | 0.73690% January 9, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. ? ’ : 2022 non-guaranteed
Mizuho Trust & Banking
Co.,.LTD. 2,000,000 N - 2,000,000 0.68500% March 31, (Note 4) Unsecured,
. ° 2022 non-guaranteed
Long-term | Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 - - 500,000
loans
payable Sumitomo Mitsui Trust -~ B o June 15, Unsecured,
(Note 3) | Bank, Limited 1,500,000 1,500,000 [ 0.94688% 2022 (Note 4) non-guarantoed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o June 15, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 1,500,000 n B 1,500,000 | 0.94688% 2022 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,500,000 - | 1500000 | 0046880 | TS| (Noteqy | Unseeured,
2022 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- o June 15, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 | 0.94688% 2022 Noted) | on-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o June 15, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited - 200,000 - 200,000 | 0.65691% 2022 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o June 15, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation B 200,000 - 200,000) - 0.65691% 2022 (Note2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. | 200,000 _ 200,000 | 0.65691% | TS| ooy | Unsecured,
2022 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ o June 15, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 200,000 200,000 | 0.65691% 2022 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking _ _ o June 15, Unsecured,
Corporation 100,000 100,000 [ 0.65691% 2022 (Note 2) non-guarantoed
Development Bank of Japan _ 100.000 _ 100.000 | 0.65691% June 15, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. ’ ’ : 2022 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 0.61330% March 30, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 (Note 5) 2023 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 0.61330% March 30, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 (Note 5) 2023 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
. 0.61330% March 30, Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 (Note 5) 2023 (Note 4) non-guarantoed
The Bank of Tokyo- 0.61330% March 30, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,250,000 - S| 1250000 | Noie 5 2023 (Noted) | on-guaranteed

’i\ctivia

Category N 5 Average 5
Bsgll nning Increase Decrease l];: x;dmg interest rate Mztlinty Igse dOf Remarks
ks alance alance (Note 1) ate unds
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o June 15, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited 1,500,000 B B 1,500,000 | 1.06316% 2023 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Y June 15, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 1,500,000 B -| 300,000 1.06316% 2023 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,500,000 - | 1500000 106316% | eS| Noreqy | Unsecured,
2023 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- Y June 15, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,500,000 - S 1,500,000 | 1.06316% 2023 Noted) | on-guaranteed
Sumllump Mitsui Banking _ 625,000 -~ 625,000 | 0.75387% June 15, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Corporation 2023 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan _ 625,000 _ 625,000 | 0.75387% June 15, (Note 2) Unsecured,
Inc. 2023 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust January 12, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited - 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 | 0.78362% 2024 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o January 12, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation - 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 | 0.78362% 2024 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Long-term | Mizuho Bank, Ltd. -] 1,400,000 ~| 1400000 | 0.78362% Ja“;‘a‘y 12| (Note ) | Unseeured,
loans 024 non-guaranteed
payable | o pank of Tok
yo- - - o January 12, Unsecured,
(Note 3) Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,400,000 1,400,000 | 0.78362% 2024 (Note 4) non-guaranteed
Sumltom_o Mitsui Banking - 700,000 - 700,000 | 0.78362% January 12, (Note 4) Unsecured,
Corporation 2024 non-guaranteed
Development Bank of Japan _ 700,000 _ 700,000 | 0.78362% January 12, (Note 4) Unsecured,
Inc. 2024 non-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust o June 17, Unsecured,
Bank, Limited - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 | 0.85377% 2024 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and o June 17, Unsecured,
Banking Corporation —-| 1.200,000 - 1,200,000 | 0.85377% 2024 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. —| 1,200,000 | 1200000 0.85377% | e 1T | ooy | Unsecured,
2024 non-guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- o June 17, Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. - 1200000 —| 1200000 0.85377% 2004 Note2) | on-guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking _ -~ o June 17, Unsecured,
Corporation 600,000 600,000 | 0.85377% 2024 (Note 2) non-guaranteed
?eve]opmem Bank of Japan -~ 600,000 _ 600,000 | 0.85377% June 17, (Note 2) Unsecured,
nc. 2024 non-guaranteed
Total 126,500,000 [ 15,250,000 7,000,000 | 134,750,000

(Note 1)
(Note 2)
(Note 3)
(Note 4)
(Note 5)

(Note 6)

Weighted average rate, rounding to the sixth decimal place.

Use of the borrowings is acquisition of the real estate trust beneficiary interests.
Long-term loans payable include current portion.
Use of the borrowings is appropriated to repayment of outstanding loans payable.

This long-term loans payable is hedged by interest rate swap contract. The average interest rate reflects the effectiveness
of this hedging instrument.

Annual repayments of long-term loans payable scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were as

follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

34 years

4-5 years

Long-term loans payable

26,400,000

20,900,000

18,500,000

18,000,000

12,000,000
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Independent Auditor’s Report Overview of API

| Structure | | Profile |
Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC Tel:+81 33503 1100 The Sponsor The REIT Custodian Name Activia Properties Inc.
Hibiya Kokusai Bldg. Fax:+81 3 3503 1197 € Transfer Agent Executive Director Michie Kawai
2-2-3 Uchisaiwai-cho, Chiyoda-ku www.shinnihon.or.jp & TOKYY LAND CORPORATION 000 General Administrator of Shin-A Building East 14F
- Tokyo 100-0011, Japan ’ ‘ R Institutionally Managed Assets in-Aoyama Building Eas ,
Building a better Ctl via Sumitomo Mitsui Address 1-1 Minami-Aoyama 1-chome,
working world (6] Activia Properties Inc. Trust Bank, Limited Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
General Administrator for CarEs: TLC Activia Investment Management Inc.
The Asset Manager (1] General Meeting o Investment Corporation Bonds Tel. +81-3-6804-5671
€5 TLE Aciva Investmest Management ss. of Unitholders Banting Corporation Closing dates May 31 and November 30
] Sumitomo Mitsui
Independent Auditor’s Report Trust Bank, Limited
o Board of Directors © Asset management agreement I HiS'l‘OI"y I
Executive Director:
DRETGETE] @ Asset custody agreement
S\"‘g:;;ii‘gfg:;r" Registration of incorporation, and foundation
The Board of Directors Support Companies Supervisory Director: © Transfer agency agreement Sep. 7, 2011 under Article 166 of the Act on Iljvestment
Activia Properties Inc Tokyu Livable Inc. fosnneniire © General administration agreement Trusts and Investment Corporations
’ Tokyu Community Corp. © Fiscal agency agreement Implementation of registration by the
Tokyu Hands Inc. Independent Auditor ° prime minister under Article 189 of the
. . . . . . . ’ Sponsor support agreement, Sep. 20,2011  Act on Investment Trusts and Investment
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Activia Properties Inc., which comprise the T°$§:yi"s°t:; ool e Emst & Young outsourcing agreement P Gorporations (registration number: Director of
balance sheet as at May 31, 2016, and the statements of operations, changes in unitholders’ equity, cash T @ Affiliate support agreements Kanto Local Finance Bureau No. 73)

distributions and cash flows for the six-month period then ended and a summary of significant accounting Listed on the J-REIT section of the Tokyo

ol 1) 02 Stock Exchange (securities code: 3279)

policies and other explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements Ove rview of t h e Asset M a n a g e r

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

| Overview of the Asset Manager | | Characteristics Inherited from Tokyu Land Corporation |

The Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Group generally carries on the frontier spirit and development
capabilities of Tokyo Land Corporation in undertaking development mainly in the Tokyo

Corporate name  TLC Activia Investment Management Inc.

Established November 15, 2010

Auditor’s Responsib:’h’ry metropolitan area and major cities nationwide. The Group has built up a strong track record

e erel e .. . ) Capital ¥300 million as a pioneer in creating businesses ahead of the times in anticipation of customer demands,
Our TBSPOPSIblllty 1s to c"[?rcss al_] _OplmOl'l on these financial statcmt?nts based on our audit. We con_dua(:d Shareholder Tokyu Land Corporation 100% for example by opening Tokyu Plaza as the forefront of a building complex near the station
our a]udlt u:j accofrdanci Wll]‘:j.audlllr':)g s_.tandards %Sneral]y acceptt;:d inJ lz:paﬁ]. T]}.]losfl? btang]zirds require that ey ——— ichie Kawa and Tokyu Hands as a specialty store for daily-life materials.
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are — — - - API's staff, with abundant experience in many fields of the Tokyu Fudosan Holdings
free from material misstatement Building Lots and Building Transactions Business . . .

. License (Governor of Tokyo (2) No. 92551) Group, engage in J-REIT operations to meet the needs of unitholders.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in Discretionary Transaction Agent License (Minister

of Land, Infrastructure and Transportation Approval I Proactive BehGVior I

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment Registration&  No. 67)

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The purpose License Licensed Financial Instrument Trader (kinsho) Kanto ~/AS @n asset manager, each staff member is required to work proactively (take the initiative,

of an audit of the financial statements is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal Local Finance Bureau License No. 2551 look ahead and improve the situation). As an asset manager, we will manage and take good

control. but in making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the em‘.ity’s Member of the Investment Trusts Association, care of individual properties as a matter of course, and we will closely observe the changing
v . . . . . v Japan (general incorporated association) market environment (the real estate, leasing and financial markets) and take immediate

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are The Association for Real Estate Securitization

measures to achieve stable management of assets from a medium- to long-term perspective.

appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the financial statements. | Asset Manager Organizational Chart |
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for Shareholders’ Meeting
our audit opinion.
Independent Auditor Corporate Auditors

Opinion Board of Directors

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

. S . . . Compliance Committee
position of Activia Properties Inc. as at May 31, 2016, and their financial performance and cash flows for
President & CEO

the six-month period then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
Investment Committee

Internal Audit Office Compliance Office

Strategic Planning and Fund Management Asset Investment Asset Management
Corporate Finance Department Department Department Department
® General Corporate Planning ® Financial Affairs of the REIT ® Investment Policy Pl_anning for ® Asset Management Policy
@ Government Agency Interface ® IR Activities Real Estate Acquisition & Sales @ Asset Management
® General Finance and ® Real Estate Acquisition & Sales
August 24, 2016 Bookkoaping

Tokyo, Japan @ IT & Information Security
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Information on Unitholders

| Trends in Unit Prices |

(The 2nd period): (The 3rd period) : (The 4th period) : (The 5th period) : (The 6th period) : (The 7th period): (The 8th period) : (The 9th perioa) (Ui

™ Trading volume (right axis) API (left axis) — TSE REIT index (left axis)

280 : : : : : : : 22,000

ZEVR TSE REIT index Jun. 12: 904.38 May 31 ¥566,000 i 20,000

240 : : : 1 : : 1 18,000

220 / Api:¥230,000 g\lg’%eo:‘f)ering price) | 16,000
/ H H H i \ i

14,000
12,000
10,000

oo X,
160 [/ [IUV‘\M N 3
o |/ - W § ‘

17 | | 1 1 == 8,000
120 W,:J’ : : : : : : 6,000
1004 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 4,000
80 i 3 3 3 3 3 3 2,000
60 : : : : : 0
Jun. 13, 2012 2013 2013 2014 2014 2015 2015 2016
2012 End of Nov. Endof May Endof Nov. EndofMay EndofNov. EndofMay EndofNov. EndofMay

(Note 1) APl implemented a 2-for-1 investment unit split with October 1, 2015 as the effective date. To reflect the split, the issue price is indicated as ¥230,000 (half of ¥460,000).
(Note 2) Regarding API's investment unit prices, daily closing prices were indexed from the listing date with the issue price = 100.
(Note 3) Regarding the Tokyo Stock Exchange REIT Index, daily closing prices were indexed from the listing date with a closing price of June 12, 2012 = 100.

| Distribution of Unitholders |

Other domestic Foreign Securities Individuals,
companies l unitholders companies J other
135 (2.1%) 206 (3.2%) 11,490 (1.9%) 25,797 (4.3%)
Foreign
Number of Securities “l”;t3°'8d7er7s Number of
unitholders companies oy investment units
by holder type 17 (0.3%) (18.5%) by holder type
61502 Other domestic 5991654
. . L companies ) .
Financial — Individuals, Financial
institutions other 681880 institutions
132 (2.0%) 6,012 (92.5%) (11.5%) 382,610 (63.8%)
(Note) APl implemented a 2-for-1 investment unit split, with October 1, 2015 as the effective date.
| Annual Schedule |
Closing month A c f
for the fiscal nnouncement ommencement Release of the
el Enn of financial of payment of Semi-Annual
p in May 9 results dividends Report
May July August September November January February March

| APl Website |

We provide all appropriate information on our website in a timely and
reliable manner.

URL
http://www.activia-reit.co.jp/english

@ctivia

| Unitholder Memo |

Account closing dates May 31 and November 30

Unitholders’ meeting To be held at least once every two years

Record date A record date based on Article 15, Section 1 of the Articles of Incorporation

Dates for determining cash

distribution payments May 31 and November 30

Administrator of
unitholders’ registry

4-1 Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 168-0003, Japan
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

4-1 Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 168-0003, Japan
Stock Transfer Agency Business Planning Department of
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

Tel: 0120-782-031 (toll-free, available within Japan only)

URL: http://www.smtb.jp/personal/agency/ (Japanese page)

Address of administrator of
unitholders’ registry

Stock exchange J-REIT section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (securities code: 3279)

Newspaper to provide public notice  Nihon Keizai Shimbun

m Change of registered address, name or seal, etc., or designation or change of
account for receipt of dividends:
Please contact the securities company.

m Dividends
You can receive dividends by presenting a dividend receipt to the nearest head office/branch/office of
Japan Post Bank (bank agency). If the period for receipt has already expired, please specify how you wish
to receive dividends on the back of the dividend receipt, and then mail it to the Stock Transfer Agency
Department, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, or receive dividends directly at the service counter of the head
office/branch of the bank.

In addition, with respect to future dividends, if you wish to receive dividends through transfer to a bank

account, etc., please take the necessary procedures at your securities company.

Stock Transfer Agency Department, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

Tel: 01 20-782-031 (toll-free, available within Japan only)

Telephone inquiries

m Dividend statement

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act on Special Measures concerning Taxation, with regard to dividends
paid by API, API will send to each unitholder a payment notification describing the amount of the dividend,
withholding tax and so forth. However, the dividend statement sent along with the dividend payment also
functions as the payment notification.

Please note that each unitholder may use the payment notification as an attachment for a tax return.
(If you select the method of allocation in proportion to the number of shares held, please ask your securities
company for further information.)
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Information on Unitholders

Withholding tax rate on dividends of listed investment corporations

Commencement
date of the From January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2037 From January 1, 2038
dividend payment
20.3159 209
Dividend tax 0'3 5 A’ O A)
rate of listed Income tax 15% + Reconstruction special income tax 0.315% ®ot Income tax
investment 15%
Breakdown Breakdown

corporations Residence tax

Residence tax 5% 5%

(Note) 15% x reconstruction special income tax rate 2.1% = 0.315%.

During the period from January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2037 (25 years), the Act on Special Measures for
Securing Financial Resources Necessary to Implement Measures for Reconstruction following the Great East
Japan Earthquake (2011 Law No. 117) is in force. As a result, there is a reconstruction special income tax
of 2.1%.

This reconstruction special income tax will be imposed together when income tax is withheld at the source on
dividends paid by listed investment corporations.

Additional issues to be aware of are as follows.

m Matters to be noted regarding the withholding tax on dividends of listed
investment corporations
e In the case of an individual unitholder who holds 3% or more of the outstanding investment, the income tax
rate is 20.42% (income tax 20% + reconstruction special income tax 0.42% ®Nete),
However, with regard to residence tax, a separate procedure is required.
e |f a corporate unitholder receives dividends, no residence tax will be imposed.

(Note) 20% x reconstruction special income tax rate 2.1% = 0.42%.

m Matters to be noted regarding the Reconstruction Special Income Tax
¢ In cases where income tax is non-taxable or exempt, or where the income tax rate is less than the rate
provided by domestic laws due to the application of a tax treaty, the reconstruction special income tax will
not be imposed.
e With regard to taxes in the case where you have selected the method of allocation in proportion to the
number of shares held, please ask your securities company.

For more details, please ask the tax office with jurisdiction over the place of tax payment.

0)
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